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Financial Highlights
B AR

For the six months ended 30 June
BERB=THILARER

2023 2022 Percentage
- —E-CF change
HK$'000 HK$'000 ﬁﬁ?ﬂj
BETT BETT g
RESULTS 25
Revenue Wozs 16,297,167 21,448,683 -24%
Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation — B#|8 « HIE » #1&
and amortisation (‘EBITDA")* &% RIAF 7,376,488 7,047,794 5%
Profit atiributable to equity holders T%’\?TEA
of the Company fElR B 2,784,923 2,811,148 1%
Return on shareholders’ equity Hﬁﬁﬁ@?&%
- half year (%) — (%) 5.82 5.51 0.31 ppt*
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) GRERBRN L) 45.34 45.76 -1%
At 30 June At 31 December
2023 2022
W=B==% HR-ZT_-f Percentage
AAETH  TZA=1+-H change
HK$000 HK$'000 E lit
BETT BETT -
FINANCIAL POSITION BEBAR
Total assets BEER 189,423,150 190,597,798 -1%
Total liabilties afEEE 123,482,416 127,098,905 4%
Equity attributable to equity holders RRRAESEREA
of the Company JElh R 48,398,989 47,374,108 2%
Net asset value per share attributable RARERGEAEE
to equity holders of the Company (HK$) BREEFE(AYL) 7.879 7.712 2%
Gearing ratio (%)* BEBBLE%); 65 67 -2 ppt?
Current ratio (%) TRENTL 2 (%) 114 107 7 pptt
* EBITDA is the profit for the period before deduction of  * ¥ & - %RIE mERBHAAT
interest, taxation, depreciation and amortisation BHNBFE - BB\ - WEREHA
2 HR R B R
* ppt — percentage point * ppt— B

* Gearing ratio means the ratio of total liabilities to total + BEABMELRIEABLAEYEER
assets s 2
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Business Review and Prospects

FG O EEEER

OPERATING RESULTS

Business Overview

In the first half of 2023, the world’s economic
growth momentum was weak and the global trade
growth slowed down. As one of the world’s major
economies, China has been in a critical period for
economic recovery and industry upgrading, fully
demonstrating its economic resilience and vitality,
with the overall economic operations recovering with
an upward trend. China’s high-quality development
has continued to guide the transformation of
the domestic environmental protection industry
from high-speed development into high-quality
development, as well as to foster the extension of the
industry chain towards directions relating to pollution
and carbon emission reduction and clean production.
The environmental protection industry has been
further empowered by actions relating to China’s
goals of “Peaking Carbon Dioxide Emissions” and
“Achieving Carbon Neutrality” (“Dual Carbons”).

As a one-stop integrated environmental management
service provider, during the period under review,
China Everbright Environment Group Limited (the
“Company” or “Everbright Environment”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) made
progress with stability. With a strong resilience
for development, the Group solidified its industry-
leading position, continuously enhanced its brand
value, and gradually achieved results in high-quality
development.
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Business Review and Prospects 27 o RE

OPERATING RESULTS (continued)

Business Overview (continued)

In terms of operating results, during the period
under review, the Group further clarified thoughts
for transformation and development, by identifying
its two major development directions (the “Two
Development Directions”), including consolidation
of its industry-leading position by focusing on its
advantages and pursuit of high-quality development
by focusing on management enhancement, in
addition to focusing on its three major business
areas (the “Three Major Business Areas”), namely
solid waste, water-related business and clean
energy. The Group’s industry-leading position was
further solidified, as it continued to consolidate its
traditional businesses, make breakthroughs in new
business areas, and implement the development
idea of balancing the asset-light and asset-heavy
businesses. The Group’s development quality
was also improved, as its corporate management
practices were further standardised, revenue
structure was further optimised, and measures
relating to cost reduction and efficiency enhancement
took effect. Additionally, more efforts were made by
the Group to technological innovation, empowering
all works of the Group, boosting technology
management, further developing its technology
research and development (“R&D”) platforms, and
enhancing its digital management proficiency.

REE RIRE (RE)ERAF
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OPERATING RESULTS (continued)

Business Overview (continued)

Major operating indicators in the first half of 2023 are
summarised in the table below:

EBME(E)
—E_CFLH¥FIBERERSE
EIERmENT ¢

Revenue
EBITDA

Profit attributable to equity
holders of the Company

Basic earnings per share
(HK cents)

During the period under review, the Group recorded
a total revenue of HK$16,297,167,000, of which
revenue from operation services was similar as the
first half of 2022 amounting to HK$9,538,762,000,
and revenue from construction services decreased by
55% from the first half of 2022 to HK$4,070,214,000.
The revenue from operation services, construction
services and finance income accounted for 59%,
25% and 16% of the total revenue, respectively.

During the period under review, the Group actively

s

Blg - BB ER
EHNE

KD AR AR
B

FREARN (B

expanded its financing channels and built up a
portfolio of both long-term and short-term financing
instruments to effectively reduce financing costs,
improve liquidity, and provide capital backing for its
medium- to long-term development. Additionally, the
Group enhanced efforts to collect and manage its
debtors, negotiated with banks to secure additional
facility support, and obtained various domestic
subsidies amounting to RMB129 million. As at 30
June 2023, the Group had cash on hand amounting
to HK$8.871 billion, with a reasonable gearing level
and a healthy financial position.

For the For the
six months six months
ended ended Percentage
30 June 2023 30 June 2022 Change
BZE Bz
—EC-=HF —E-F
AA=1H ~NA=1H )
EA@A 1E~EA AALEE
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BETT
16,297,167 21,448,683 -24%
7,376,488 7,047,794 5%
2,784,923 2,811,148 -1%
45.34 45.76 -1%
EEHAN - AEBEKEEHR
= % % 16,297,167,000 JT °
E BEB2RhBUasBE
9,538,762,0007T + i =F = — 4
FRERE  RERE kSRS
#4,070,214,0007T * W=_F ==
FEFEF TSR - FMEmtt
B BERBKE - BERS
Weam & B 1 U A 95 Rl L 48 U 2= 1Y
59% * 25% % 16% -
BESR - AL EEGRERE
2 TEREEHENME LA
e AUEEBERE k=
B APREEREREHEES
REE o o - REBMA N EE
WE SRR - BLIRITE P &
EHERRE  TESERER
EemBhEARK1.29BT - &
EZTE=FA=+H " K&&
BEFFReELKSS7T1ETL A
BRFEEE - FBARAREE



8

Business Review and Prospects 27 o RE

OPERATING RESULTS (continued)
Business Overview (continued)

China Everbright Environment Group Limited
FEERRE(EE)BRAF

4 1k e
EBBE(E

The Group’s major financing arrangements in the first —Z = = SELYE AEETE

half of 2023 are summarised in the table below:

BMELHFMBLOT

Financing arrangements and uses of

Issue date proceeds Issue size (RMB)
EITHE MELHEREEESRR BITREALER)
May 2023 The Company issued the 2023 perpetual 2 billion
—E_=4AHA medium-term notes (“MTNSs”) (series 2) in 2018 7T
the national inter-bank bond market for the
repayment of the Group’s interest-bearing
debts, which is subject to adjustment.
ARRIREZBRRITEEFMSETZZ
—=EEF_HXETRER - ARNER
REENEBER  EHRER THE -
May 2023 China Everbright Greentech Limited 1 billion
—E_=4hA (“Everbright Greentech”), the Company’s 10187T

listed subsidiary, issued the 2023
first tranche of the green MTNs in the
national inter-bank bond market for the
repayment of interest-bearing debts of
Everbright Greentech and its subsidiaries,
replenishment of their working capital
and/or to invest and construct their
environmental protection projects and for
other business development purposes.
AR EHREARRE R RGERRE
NEARAREERR])R2BEBRTHE
FMnBET_T_=FEF—H&edH
2% ARAARGERERRENBRQRE
BEEEL MagEEek HREM
RIRRIA B R EMEBERAR
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OPERATING RESULTS (continued)
Business Overview (continued)

Financing arrangements and uses of

EBME(E)

Issue date proceeds Issue size (RMB)
#F1THH METHLEEESH BITHEBEAEE)
April 2023 China Everbright Water Limited 1 billion
—E_=4JA (“Everbright Water”), the Company’s listed 10187T
subsidiary, issued the 2023 first tranche
MTNs in the national inter-bank bond
market for the replenishment of working
capital of Everbright Water’s subsidiaries.
RAF EmMERRFRE N KKBERA
AI([EARKRF DR EBERITEES TS5
TZE_=FEF—H+BHERE AR
FEHAKEHBARINEEES ©
March 2023 Everbright Water issued the 2023 1 billion
—E-_=%=A1 first tranche of super and short-term 10187T
commercial papers in the national inter-
bank bond market for the repayment of
Everbright Water’s outstanding debts.
HARKBREBRITHEBSTSET_F
—=FEE— %ﬁt’&ﬂﬁvaﬂéﬁ RARER
S RIK TS 8 2 HA B 753
March 2023 The Company issued the 2023 MTNs 2 billion
—E-=%=H (series 1) in the national inter-bank 20187T
bond market for the repayment of the
Company’s bank borrowings.
ARARREZRBRTHESFM BRI
T=FEF—HTHEE - AR ,aaaZlS
AIERITER °
The Group remains dedicated to creating value for AREBFF AR QR FRE ([AZ
and sharing development and operation returns with HASERIFEE @ BRiFHARR
the shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders”). DELPENRKERR - BEIEK
To reward the Shareholders for their support, the HH#H AAFES([ESE])E
board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Director(s)”) of ([EF € |)SMHAKRERZEEE
the Company has declared to pay an interim dividend —E-=FXA=1tHILENEA
of HK14.0 cents per share for the six months ended 2 EP HEREFKR14.08 WL ( =

30 June 2023 to the Shareholders (2022: HK15.0

cents per share).

T

A% 15.081l) -
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OPERATING RESULTS (continued)

Business Overview (continued)

As at 30 June 2023, the Group had a business
presence in more than 220 cities, counties and
districts across 26 provinces, municipalities,
autonomous regions and special administrative
region in China, with overseas business markets in
Germany, Poland, Vietham and Mauritius. The Group
invested in and secured a total of 578 environmental
protection projects, with an aggregate investment
of approximately RMB158.044 billion. It also
undertook various asset-light projects and services,
such as environmental remediation, waste sorting,
engineering, procurement and construction (“EPC”),
operation and management (“O&M”), equipment
supply, and technical services. As the world’s
largest waste-to-energy investor and operator, the
Group had a total of 188 waste-to-energy projects
(including 1 O&M project and a project based on the
“Engineering Design, Procurement, Construction and
Operation” (“EPCO”) model) under its environmental
energy and greentech sectors, with a designed daily
household waste processing capacity of 157,200
tonnes.

In terms of market expansion, during the period
under review, the Group continued to focus on the
three major areas, namely solid waste, water-related
business and clean energy. It actively extended and
improved the relevant industry chain layout and
achieved practical results in solidifying its existing
business areas and exploring new business fields,
improving efficiency through synergy, and balancing
both asset-light and asset-heavy businesses. In
the first half of 2023, the Group invested in and
secured a total of 25 new projects and signed 1
supplementary agreement to an existing project, for
a total investment of approximately RMB3.122 billion.
These new projects involve waste-to-energy and
the synergistic businesses, municipal and industrial
waste water treatment, biomass integrated utilisation,
and solar energy, among others. The Group also
undertook various asset-light businesses, with a total
contract value of approximately RMB2.014 billion.

REE RIRE (RE)ERAF
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OPERATING RESULTS (continued)

Business Overview (continued)

In respect to market expansion highlights, during
the period under review, in terms of the traditional
business areas, the Group continued to secure
new projects in areas like waste-to-energy, waste
water treatment and integrated biomass utilisation.
In terms of new breakthroughs, for the first
time, the Group secured multiple environmenta
protection projects based on the EPCO model, as
well as new businesses in county-level markets
such as Dafang County in Guizhou Province and
Shen County in Shandong Province. In terms of
synergistic development, the Group successively
signed multiple synergistic projects related to
waste-to-energy, including food and kitchen waste
treatment, fecal treatment, slag treatment, heat
supply, and environmental sanitation integration,
consolidating the Group’s waste-to-energy industry
chain deployment in the local markets. In terms
of asset-light businesses, in addition to securing
multiple EPCO projects, the Group secured Sichuan
Marinkan Boiler and Flue Gas Purification Project,
in which the Group provided its self-developed
small-tonnage household waste mechanical grate
furnace to external clients for the first time. This
marked the realisation of the Group’s strategic
plans for expansion into the county-level small-
tonnage household waste treatment market
and the commercialisation of its technological
equipment. In addition, based on the principle of
“Openness, Sharing and Win-win Cooperation”,
the Group carried out exchanges with more than
60 local government authorities, enterprises and
organisations, to enhance strategic partnership,
explore collaboration opportunities, and foster joint
long-term development.

11
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EXME(E)
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Business Review and Prospects 2 EfEEREE

OPERATING RESULTS (continued)

Business Overview (continued)

The major designed treatment and supply capacities
of the new projects secured in the first half of 2023

REE RIRE (RE)ERAF

RS (1)
ERME(E)
CECCFEEFHBEAMNE
DRFTEENMEERERENT

are summarised as below:

Project Category
158 %5

Designed Treatment/Supply Capacity
RETERIE IR AR

Household waste

2,000 tonnes/day*

A SE R 2,0001F B+
Food and kitchen waste 775 tonnes/day*
BB R B R 77508 B¢
Biomass raw materials 50,000 tonnes/year
EYE R R 50,000 4
Water treatment* 180,000 m®/day*
K BRI 180,000 77K/ H*
Solar power installed capacity 32.5 megawatt (“MWp”)
HREERREE 32.5)KE

* Including various types of water business, such as water supply, waste water treatment and reusable

water

- BEHK  JSKEIE - RSB EBEER

# Including treatment capacity of EPCO project(s)

# EEPCOE B MR R
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OPERATING RESULTS (continued)

Business Overview (continued)

In terms of operations management, during the
period under review, the Group insisted on stable
operation and meeting emission standards,
and improved the fine operations management
proficiency through the application of information
and smart technology and construction of relevant
platforms. Environmental energy continuously
optimised related technical processes and
management procedures, which boosted power
generation capacity per tonne of waste in the waste-
to-energy plants, offered heat supply services to
external clients via more than 30 of its projects, and
strengthened coordination and integration of waste
sources, which resulted in more waste delivered to
and more electricity generated at the Group’s waste-
to-energy projects as compared with the same
period of last year, improving the projects’ operating
efficiency. Environmental water continued the “in-
plant solar energy” pilot programme to supplement
project site electricity consumption with green
power, effectively reducing project operating costs.
Greentech piloted new hazardous waste treatment
technologies and processes, improving project
capacity utilisation rate and reducing related costs.

In terms of project construction, during the period
under review, the Group continued to adhere to the
seven principles of “Productivity, Efficiency, Quality,
Cost-Effectiveness, Legitimacy, Safety and Integrity”,
and adopted dynamic management among other
measures. It also strengthened the control of safety
risk factors and smoothly carried out all project
construction works. In the first half of 2023, 21
projects completed construction and commenced
operation, and 3 projects completed construction. 2
environmental remediation services were completed
and delivered. Additionally, 35 projects (including
EPC and EPCO projects) commenced construction
and 4 environmental remediation services began
execution.

13

EBME(E)

BEEETE  BEEA - KE
BEBREES  ERER T
SEBRBERL BRLEERTA
LR RAELEENEMAL
K o RIRBERFFEELE
R THEEREERIE - AR
B IR B A AR R B E
2 30HREERRRY MR
ET5 s aL R AUR M AT B E
& BRAPHEEFHANIPA
e - HEERLLEE - REE
BREMEIRTT - RIRKGHES
HEET AR AR T - A
BENHAEEMEMAE - AN
BRAKIEBEZKA - ZERE
HHGEREIERIN e
iﬁéﬁﬁlﬁﬁﬁjﬁﬂﬁéﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ

TEELXFE BEHR - K
EREFHIZRITEELER]
RO RBNEBELCEESREE
tZ2RBEBXRER  HHEIE
BEIRERAFHEE T
FL¥F AEEEKKEEAR
211E ~ R TIEE3ME : TIIW
RIETWRRIEERS2ME  FFHT
18 B 3518 (£ EPCXEPCOIEE )
M AITIRIBIE1EIRTG41E -

1) 388 ) oA



14 China Everbright Environment Group Limited

Business Review and Prospects 27 o RE

OPERATING RESULTS (continued)

Business Overview (continued)

During the period under review, the Group continued
to actively engage in various “Cost Reduction and
Efficiency Enhancement” activities and achieved
effective results. In terms of financial management,
the Group optimised financing structure, continued to
reduce loan interest rates, replaced overseas loans
of high interest rates with those of lower interest
rates, and optimised its domestic and overseas loan
structure, further reducing its finance costs. In terms
of project construction management, the Group
optimised the review procedure relating to project
construction budgeting, inspected issues relating to
technical improvement costs for operating projects,
and effectively reduced project construction costs
through measures such as optimisation of relevant
systems, expense management and technical
improvement. In terms of information technology
management, the Group developed its intelligent
management platform to promote business synergy
and data integration, improving decision-making
and analysis efficiency relating to its business
operation. In the meantime, the Group proactively
carried out the development of platforms relating to
business and finance integrated management and
intelligent management, improving the operation-
related decision making efficiency. In terms of
tendering and procurement management, the Group
optimised procurement levels, expanded the scope
of centralised procurement, and completed 30
centralised procurement cases, effectively reducing
procurement costs.

REE RIRE (RE)ERAF
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OPERATING RESULTS (continued)

Business Overview (continued)

The Group adheres to the concepts relating to
environmental protection and social responsibility,
and actively promotes energy conservation and the
reduction of pollution and carbon emissions, to drive
the simultaneous improvement of social, economic
and environmental benefits. The Group’s major
environmental contributions during the period under
review are summarised as below:

Treatment Capacity

15
EBHE
m%@iﬁma%ﬁm B

E/\ FWT’E@J%@EHEF W5
PR - EIRHEEYE - CEMIIR
BHENRLSREA - DBEHER -
AEBFERBEMBEAOT ¢

Environmental Contribution
RIFER

Generating green electricity of
12,986,000,000 kWh. This output
could support the annual electricity
consumption needs of 10,821,000
households, equivalent to saving
5,194,000 tonnes of standard coal,
while reducing Carbon Dioxide
(“CO2") emissions by 15,894,000
tonnes.

R4 © % 712,986,000,000 F B
- wmmfﬂm&mmm%ﬁ
—FHNEREE  HERSFORHE
awmmo@vﬁ*—$HUﬁwm
15,894,000MF °

RIBHIE
Household waste processed 25,634,000 tonnes
EEN R RIS 25,634,000
Hazardous and solid waste 186,000 tonnes
processed 186,000ME
15 % K% [ BE
(TEEREDRREE
Agricultural and forestry 3,750,000 tonnes
waste processed 3,750,000
EMEENRIES
Waste water treated 845,823,000 m?
VEKEEE 845,823,000 5 K
Waste-to-energy plants’ 5,653,000 m®
leachate treated 5,653,0003Z /5 K

WRBERSRRRIES

Reducing Chemical Oxygen Demand
(“COD") discharge of 407,000
tonnes.

MLk EFa=([CODI) HR
407,000 °
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OPERATING RESULTS (continued) REZEE(E)

Business Overview (continued) ERBEE)

Since the Group’s first environmental protection B -_ZEETREANEEEFBKRE
project commenced operation in 2005, its aggregate BIRENK - AEB RN T E
major environmental contributions are summarised as IREFEIBEEWOT ¢

below:

Treatment Capacity Environmental Contribution
RIBFIE REER
Household waste processed 243,559,000 tonnes Generating green electricity of
EENREIEE 243,559,000 118,472,000,000 kWh. This output
Hazardous and solid 1,957,000 tonnes ggﬁfu ;Upﬂ?oor:t;Qsdznglese?;e;étggg
i progcessed 1,957,0000 households, equivalent to saving
fEEREREEE 47,389,000 tonnes of standard coal,
Agricultural and forestry 38,539,000 tonnes while reducing CO2 emissions by
waste processed 38,539,000/ 114,961,000 tonnes.
EMNEENRES R4 6 E 118,472,000,000 F B
BS - B #4948 % 7 98,726,000 K &
—FREAEE HERSHHERE
47,389,000 - &l 2 = &1L Bix HF K
114,961,000W °
Waste water treated 15,578,385,000 m® Reducing COD discharge of
AKEEE 15,578,385,00037 /7 K 6,183,000 tonnes.
Waste-to-energy plants’ 52,882,000 m? RGO 5 6000
leachate treated 52,882,00037 /5 7K

WRBERERREEE
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Business Overview (continued)

During the period under review, the Group continued
to fulfill its corporate citizenship responsibilities by
providing comprehensive high-quality environmental
management services to protect the natural and
human living environment. The Group also actively
participated in various public welfare and charitable
activities to promote the concepts relating to
ecological environmental protection and sustainable
development. In the first half of 2023, by leveraging
on its business sectors and operating projects, the
Group organised a series of activities, including
public open days, knowledge competitions, public
welfare lectures and parent-child activities, in
conjunction with environmental protection holidays
such as “World Environment Day”, to strengthen
interaction and integration with local government
departments, institutions, schools and community
residents. These helped to strengthen the shared
interests among the government, enterprises and
public, and to implement the relevant spirit and
requirements of the national ecological civilisation
construction among the general public. In addition,
to support the “Strive and Rise Programme”
of the Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region (“HKSAR”), the Group
leveraged its business characteristics to hold
environmental protection lectures in Hong Kong,
advocating environmental protection concepts and
enhancing the understanding and recognition of
ecological environmental protection and sustainable
development among secondary school students
in Hong Kong. As of 30 June 2023, the Group
accumulatively opened up 201 projects for public
visit. In the first half of 2023, the Group received over
52,000 domestic and overseas visitors across all
sectors.
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=

In the first half of 2023, the Group received many —EF

fulfillment of its responsibility and continued efforts
in various aspects, including business operation,
sustainable development and social responsibility.

The major awards and honors are summarised as

below:

Category
il

EBME (&
=FL¥FE AEEEXE

REE RIRE (RE)ERAF

honors from home and abroad in recognition of its &% « AIFEERE - iﬁﬁﬁ
EFEBNER BERH -
15 Z TH IR M NG 88 I%‘éﬁlﬁﬁ&
REREWT :
Awarding
Award/Recognition Organisation(s)
B R HEIEAE B MRS

Brand influence

g2 )

Top of the List for Brand Value of Listed
Environmental Protection Companies
in 2022

szf%zéi%%ﬁ%iﬁ@ﬁm%fﬁm%ﬁj

National Business Daily
(“NBD”) and NBD
Brand Value
Research Institute

AEsE (&
%‘«J) SREMEEER
ek

Operation and

Everbright Water was shortlisted in

E20 Environmental

Management the Top Ten Influential Enterprises Platform
=] in China’s Water Industry (the sixth E20IRZEF &
consecutive year)
RARRBAERBKETRTZENTE]
BEGEEERF)
Everbright Greentech was awarded the Federation of Hong
EcoChallenger Kong Industries and
HAFZEBRRETIRRESLE] Bank of China (Hong
Kong)
EELERE  PER
7(F#)
Project The Group’s Jiangxi Ji’an Waste-to- China Installation
Construction energy Project received the China Association
TRER Installation Engineering Quality Award RREZERE

AEBTHERUREERE TRER
[PERZETRELE]
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OPERATING RESULTS (continued) KRB SR (4F)
Business Overview (continued) EBWMEE)
Awarding
Category Award/Recognition Organisation(s)
kel 121 S EE HEIE 8 B AR
Sustainable Inclusion in the Sustainability Yearbook S&P Global
Development (the sixth time) REEIK
A ERR BEMACAIRHEERFENENR)
Inclusion in the Sustainability Yearbook S&P Global
(China Edition) for the first time EE R

BREMACIHEERFE(PER))

The Group’s Vietnam Can Tho Waste-
to-energy Project was named the
“2022 Vietnam Sustainable Energy
Development Enterprise”

RNEE MR ENRESIEA
FHE R RE R R ]

E3T[ 2022

The Group’s Hangzhou Waste-to-energy
Project and Quzhou Waste-to-energy
Project (“Quzhou Project”) in Zhejiang
were included in the “2022 Zhejiang
Provincial Green Low-Carbon Factory”
list

ANEBEAOINNIREBIER - BMNBR
ZEEHIAR ([HMIER 1) AE[2022F #
LA R R TR &

Vietnamese Ministry
of Industry and
Trade and other
government
authorities

B TEBEBTHE

Economy and
Information
Technology
Department of
Zhejiang Province

Hﬁ/lé Z\Zﬁ/iﬁliafu1:l \_,\'HZEE
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REE RIRE (RE)ERAF

Awarding
Category Award/Recognition Organisation(s)
k=Rl HETH R HEIE 8 B AR
Social Social Responsibility Brand of the Year China Charity Festival
Responsibility (the ninth consecutive year) A B A 7R B
HEEE FEAEERBR(CEBENSF)

The Group’s Hainan Danzhou Waste-
to-energy Project was recognised as
the “National Science Popularisation
Education Base” for 2021-2025

AEEGrREMAIRE EIR B ERT2021-
2025 [ 2 BRI EH A Eith ]

The Group’s Shandong Pingdu Waste-
to-energy Project, Rizhao Waste-to-
energy Project and Zibo Hazardous
Waste Integrated Treatment Project
were shortlisted in the “Top 10
Environmental Protection Facilities for
Public Opening” in Shandong Province
for 2023

$¢lm$3ﬁ*ni&§w§r§ B - BRH
REFHEBHEE - KEGEGAREHEDE
ﬁ?%¢M$@+h%ﬁ R e P
v

The Group’s Hunan Yiyang Waste-to-
energy Project and Xiangyin Waste-
to-energy Project were shortlisted in
the “Top 10 Ecological Environment
Education Bases in Hunan Province for
2023”

AEEmmERESHEE M%nﬁ

AT IE B T 2023F #fmA TEE
RIBHE £ |

China Association
for Science and
Technology

R B A2l e

Ecology and
Environment
Department and
Housing and Urban-
Rural Development
Department of
Shandong Province

LA A RRIRIREE - 1L
;%E%ﬂﬁﬂ@%

Ecology and
Environment
Department of Hunan
Province

WA ERIRERE
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OPERATING RESULTS (continued) KRB SR (4F)
Business Overview (continued) B (E)
Awarding
Category Award/Recognition Organisation(s)
E=bll HETH R HEIE T B
Social The Group’s Hunan Ningyuan Waste-to- Ecology and
Responsibility energy Project and Hengnan Waste- Environment
(Cont’d) to-energy Project were recognised as Department of Hunan
e EEE) the “Ecological Environment Education Province

Base(s) in Hunan Province for 2022”

REENEERERNREEIRE  GENIR
L~ B IE T 2022F MM & £ RRIRIE
A Ei |

The Group’s Henan Xinzheng Waste-
to-energy Project, Nanyang Waste-
to-energy Project, Lankao Waste-to-
energy Project and Xinyang Waste-
to-energy Project were shortlisted in
the “Top 10 Environmental Protection
Facilities for Public Opening in Henan
Province”

RNEBN AN REEIAE - EHRR
SEIHE  BMENRBHEEE REHA
REEFEBHBETOUTEAE T ERRREE
P |

Quzhou Project was recognised as
“Water Conservation Promotion
and Education Base(s) in Zhenjiang
Province”

EINEBETDMI A KEEHE Rt

The Group’s Jiangsu Danyang Waste-
to-energy Project was awarded the
“Urban Household Waste Sorting
Popularisation Education Base in
Jiangsu Province for 2023”

RNE BT FHS 0 7 3 B 18 B B[ 2023
iil%%%tﬁﬁi%iﬁi&%%ﬁﬂ%%ﬁz%%

WA AR

Department of Ecology
and Environment of
Henan Province

A ERRIRIBEE

Water Conservation
Office of Zhejiang
Province and
Department of Water
Resources of
Zhejiang Province

DA =R-GEO)E P SN
= I A KT EE

Department of Housing
and Urban-Rural
Development of
Jiangsu Province

5125%‘&%%%%%%?&
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I

ENVIRONMENTAL ENERGY

Environmental energy is a core business
sector of the Group, with the largest scale and
biggest business portion, covering waste-to-
energy, food and kitchen waste treatment,
leachate treatment, fly ash treatment,
methane-to-energy, sludge treatment and
disposal, construction and decoration waste
treatment, development of environmental
protection industrial parks, integrated urban
services, waste sorting, resource utilisation
and recycling, as well as technical consultancy,
engineering design and EPC relating to
environmental protection. During the period
under review, environmental energy further
improved the deployment of the Group’s
waste-to-energy industry chain, facilitated
integrated development of the resources and
energy integrated utilisation businesses, and
continuously consolidated its leading position in
the industry.

As of 30 June 2023, environmental energy
had invested in and held 274 projects, with a
total investment of approximately RMB95.995
billion, and undertook 2 O&M projects, 2
EPCO projects, and other types of asset-light
businesses. These projects (including processing
capacity under the O&M model) are designed
to have an annual household waste processing
capacity of 53,162,250 tonnes, an annual on-
grid electricity of 17,825,554,700 kWh, an
annual food and kitchen waste processing
capacity of 3,169,295 tonnes, an annual sludge
treatment capacity of 503,700 tonnes, and an
annual medical waste processing capacity of
20,258 tonnes.

438 1k wwizz
%i%*%E\

REE RIRE (RE)ERAF

fﬁf?%ﬁb/
RRERATNEEETRE
B EBOESESZL
BRI - EBRE RN E
B BERESRNIRERE
BB IR - RREIE 8
REE  SREERE &
SERENIREIE  RREHE
BRI AR S RS - B
FHE - ERCESMEE
é P RREFHRMER
IT“‘“‘Jr EPC% - [0l Hf
E«R{%Hu/ﬁﬁ LF i_L
i&%éf@?%%éﬁﬁ)% ﬁégﬁﬁ
ReeRZaNMABEEX B

TR BFERETEELM

fi ©

ﬁ —TE-=ZFXA=T
i&ﬁabﬁ,\&iéf?%ﬁlﬁ

Ez741l BIEEHARE

959.9517%;75 C HEE2EE

sEiEZIEA - 2fEPCOIA

&Eﬁﬂi‘“ﬁ%%fn o ;Z%
IEE B (S LRTE
J@ﬁ%mﬁ)i%iﬁﬁiﬂéu
% 53,162,250 M - F I 43
% 8 17,825,554,700 T R
B FREEEEMESRR
3,169,295M8  F R IE5
503,700 K F fz 1P B8 /&5 fix
Y ([ 52 |)20,2580 o
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Business Overview (continued) ERBEE)
1. ENVIRONMENTAL ENERGY (continued) - é%nf;/’?ng(ft)

As of 30 June 2023, environmental energy’s Ejz;zé_ S =ZFRNA=F

waste-to-energy projects are summarised as
follows:

Project Status Number of Projects

T IRIR Hb/ﬁiiiﬁgé HH
/RT%X;ZDT

Designed Processing Capacity
(tonnes/annum)

JE AR JE R A (&) AR (W)
In operation* 148 47,906,250
®iE*
Under construction 8 3,522,250
EE

* including O&M project(s)

* SEEYEA

As of 30 June 2023, environmental energy’s
waste-to-energy synergistic projects” are
summarised as follows:

@i_q —=ZFRNAZ=ZTF
IRIREER AR EHE
IE EXEAMENT

Designed Processing Capacity

Project Status Number of Projects (tonnes/annum)
JERRAE THE A (E) REtEIRRE (W, F)
In operation® 74 3,907,015
RiE

Under construction 17 1,030,760
v

including various waste-to-energy synergistic projects such as food and kitchen waste

treatment, sludge treatment and disposal, and medical waste treatment

* SEELESHUREE  SRREREE - B

# including O&M project(s)
# BEELERE

REREER AN RHEHFRIER
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I

ENVIRONMENTAL ENERGY (continued)

In terms of market development, in the first half
of 20283, environmental energy made steady
and solid progress in business expansion, with
a focus on the balanced development of waste-
to-energy and synergistic businesses as well
as asset-light and asset-heavy businesses. In
particular, environmental energy successively
implemented a number of synergistic projects
like environmental sanitation integration and
food and kitchen waste treatment projects,
achieving practical results in synergistic
business development by leveraging on the
strengths of the waste-to-energy business. It
also implemented Guizhou Dafang Waste-to-
energy Project, further opening up the county
waste-to-energy market. Through acquisition,
it secured Yunnan Zhaotong Waste-to-
energy Project (subject to completion of the
relevant settlement procedures) and secured
Sichuan Yibin Second Household Waste-
to-energy Project (Phase |) EPCO Project
based on the EPCO model for the first time,
further broadening the scope of the Group’s
asset-light business. During the period under
review, environmental energy invested in and
secured 17 new projects, covering the areas
of waste-to-energy, food and kitchen waste
treatment, environmental sanitation integration
and medical waste treatment, with a total
investment of approximately RMB1.722 billion.
It also newly undertook 2 EPCO projects and
other types of asset-light businesses, with a
total contract value of approximately RMB648
million. The newly secured projects contribute
a designed daily household waste processing
capacity of 2,000 tonnes (including processing
capacity under the O&M model), a designed
daily food and kitchen waste processing
capacity of 775 tonnes, and a designed annual
steam supply capacity of 468,340 tonnes.

438 1k Py %Zﬁ
%%Hg

REE RIRE (RE)ERAF

RIREEIR (42 )
MGHRIAE  —T-=F
F¥F o RREERBENR
BENBRES  KEEE
R FEER - %Ei&
o ERREL o HAF
%uﬁmﬁhﬁﬁ %W%
CRBEE S ARG
k BEREHANERE

HEIAEE - R S5 R A
SEX: %EEMK%&W
WEIAA - - SITH K

aﬁ%%m% LAY & 75 =X
NS EmEENREEIER
(FREABREFE) B
RAEPCOE K — k& E
N EEE - E/E Rk R e
BFHEIEE (—H)RFELIR
EBHEE  E—FHEARSE
B EEXGHE o DN
AN RIREERTE L EE17
ExEE  WENRES -
EERESHUFEE  RE
—Bi  BEEES 8%
BHNREAT7T 22087 ¥
A ZE2HEPCOIE B & Hth
MEEER  SRBEHA
R#6.4818 7T : ﬁ%aﬁﬁ
B(EETELRERE) B
H & I8 A4 & 57 2,000 -
ARIEER MBI HIRTT5
Wg - 4 f ' 2 5 468,340
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ENVIRONMENTAL ENERGY (continued)

In terms of project construction, during the
period under review, environmental energy
carried out project construction works in an
effective manner. Among which, the Group
completed the construction of a number
of projects in Hainan Boao Zero-Carbon
Demonstration Zone EPC Project in just three
months with high quality, by overcoming the
challenges of tight construction schedules,
complex and sophisticated projects, and high
technical requirements, demonstrating “zero-
carbon” related philosophy and outcome and
contributing the “Everbright” strength to a
sustainability benchmark with the Chinese
characteristics. During the period under review,
183 projects completed construction and
commenced operation, with a total designed
daily household waste processing capacity of
3,050 tonnes, and a designed daily food and
kitchen waste processing capacity of 1,305
tonnes. 18 projects commenced construction,
with a total designed daily household waste
processing capacity of 2,900 tonnes, and a
designed daily food waste processing capacity
of 1,268 tonnes.

During the period under review,
environmental energy contributed an
EBITDA of HK$4,726,705,000, a decline
of 5% as compared with the first half of
2022. Environmental energy contributed
a net profit attributable to the Group of
HK$2,725,376,000, a decline of 1% as
compared with the first half of 2022. The
decrease in profit was mainly attributable to
the decrease in the number of construction
projects affected by the market during the
period under review, which resulted in the
decline in revenue and profit from construction
services.
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Business Overview (continued) %ﬁ%mﬁ(ﬁ)
1. ENVIRONMENTAL ENERGY (continued) RIRGEIR (&)
Major operating data relating to environmental TR C=F PEE S BREE
energy during the first half of 2023 are R ET2ELBBEREN
summarised in the table below: o
For the For the
six months six months
ended ended Percentage
30 June 2023 30 June 2022 Change
Bz BE
—EC-=E -
~B=tH ANA=1H
EAEA WEREA BAOLES
Waste processing B R I8 (1)
volume (tonnes) 23,865,000 22,175,000 8%
Food and kitchen BEREHUR -
waste, sludge, 5 B E At i R
and other waste RES (1)
processing volume
(tonnes) 1,262,000 955,000 32%

On-grid electricity LREECKRE)
(MWh) 7,893,385 7,544,469 5%
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1.

ENVIRONMENTAL WATER

As of 30 June 2023, the Group held a 72.87%
stake in Everbright Water, which is listed on
the Mainboard of the Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Limited and the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). As a first-class water
environment management service provider in
China, Everbright Water focused on the “water-
related” business. It has developed a fully-
fledged business coverage, which includes
raw water protection, water supply, municipal
waste water treatment, industrial waste
water treatment, reusable water, river-basin
ecological restoration, and sludge treatment
and disposal. It has also formed a full industry
chain in the water business, including project
investment, planning and design, technology
R&D and related services, engineering and
construction, operations management and
integrated diagnosis, among others. Everbright
Water is proactively creating value to industries
through various water businesses.

As of 30 June 2023, Everbright Water had
invested in and held 166 projects, with a total
investment of approximately RMB30.765
billion. It also undertook 5 O&M projects,
2 EPCO projects and other types of asset-
light businesses. These projects (including
treatment capacity under the O&M model)
are designed to have an annual waste water
treatment capacity of 2,286,031,500 mé,
an annual reusable water supply capacity
of 115,194,000 m®, an annual water supply
capacity of 310,250,000 m?, and an annual
sludge treatment capacity of 793,900 tonnes.
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OPERATING RESULTS (continued) AR (E
Business Overview (continued) ERBEE)
. ENVIRONMENTAL WATER (continued) = REAKEE)
As of 30 June 2023, Everbright Water’s water BE_Z-_=#xA=+
projects are summarised as follows: B R AKBEZBE/KKEIER
BRAMENT
Designed Treatment Capacity
Project Status Number of Projects (m%/annum)
IE B ARAE 15 B EE(E) BETEBRE (LK F)
In operation* 139 2,194,270,500
i@
Under construction® 15 302,950,000
fEfEt
* including O&M project(s)
. EERERER
# including EPCO project(s)

* ZEPCOIEE
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Business Overview (continued)

WmEZ)

ENVIRONMENTAL WATER (continued)

In terms of market development, in the first
half of 2023, Everbright Water adhered to
“water” as the fundamental factor of its
business. By solidifying its existing business
areas and exploring new business fields,
as well as balancing asset-light and asset-
heavy businesses, Everbright Water constantly
solidified its advantages of traditional business
fields such as municipal and industrial
waste water treatment and leveraged such
advantages to achieve new breakthroughs
in the asset-light business. During the period
under review, Everbright Water exported
its experience and strengths in operations
management and successively secured
Huai’an Lianshui Konggang Industrial Park
Industrial Waste Water Treatment Plant EPCO
Project and Jiangyin High-tech Zone Waste
Water Treatment Plant Phase | Stage 1 EPCO
Project in Jiangsu Province, which marked
the significant achievements of Everbright
Water’s exploration of new mechanism and
implementation of new model in the industrial
waste water treatment field. During the period
under review, Everbright Water secured
5 projects and signed 1 supplementary
agreement to an existing project, with a total
investment of approximately RMB1.163 billion,
and newly undertook 2 EPCO projects and
other types of asset-light businesses, with a
total contract value for the external customers
of approximately RMB1.01 billion. The new
projects are designed to have a daily waste
water treatment capacity of 165,000 m?
(including treatment capacity under the O&M
model), and a daily reusable water supply of
15,000 m3.

BN (E)
MBWES®E — T =
E¥EF S R RKEEEE
[K]BEE  BAHEH -
WEIE  FEEEMRN
T ¥ KRS EHEEN
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R FE ST o [0 EHR
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BHNBEERSEHEMNK
BEEE - KA AKEE
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1.

ENVIRONMENTAL WATER (continued)

In terms of project construction, during the
period under review, Everbright Water had
4 projects that completed construction and
commenced operation and 3 projects that
completed construction, with a designed daily
water treatment capacity of 130,000 m?3; 9
projects commenced construction, with a
designed daily water treatment capacity of
40,000 m3.

In terms of operations management, during
the period under review, adhering to China’s
“Dual Carbons” strategic goals, Everbright
Water consolidated and promoted its “in-plant
solar energy” pilot programme. As of 30 June
2023, 5 solar energy pilot programmes had
commenced operation, with the solar energy
facilities having a total installed capacity of
9.01 MWp, which are expected to generate
5.10 million kWh green electricity per annum.
Additionally, Everbright Water made continual
and rapid progress in the construction of
the “Intelligent Water” platform during the
period under review, as evidenced by the
commencement of the construction of a master
data platform, further and in-depth application
of digital tools, and the testing of a precise
catalyst application system in various projects.
In the first half of 2023, 1 waste water treatment
plant of Everbright Water received regulatory
approval for tariff hike at 5%.
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OPERATING RESULTS (continued) KRB SR (4F)
Business Overview (continued) EBWMEE)
I ENVIRONMENTAL WATER (continued) = BERKKE)

During the period under review, the Group’s
environmental water sector contributed
an EBITDA of HK$1,289,680,000, an 21%
increase compared with the first half of 2022.
Environmental water contributed a net profit
attributable to the Group of HK$459,246,000,
an 21% increase compared with the first half
of 2022. The increase in profit was mainly due
to the tariff hike for a project effected during
the period under review and the effect of
the implementation of value added tax (VAT)
exemption incentive policy which resulted in
an increase of operating costs in one-off basis
during 2022.

Major operating data relating to environmental

BN - AEBEIRRKS
RBERBRFE - BIE 47
ERBEAANEHBE
1,289,680,0007T + =T
T RFEMN21% o IR
RIKTS B R AN 5 B B (5 F &
7| /7% ¥ 459,246,000 7T -
BT F LHFEM
21% : BAEREEHNE
BHNEEKEES AR
EFERB-—RUEBBEFE
EEMEEEEERE LW
WRALSEERAREEER

B 48R
M -

TEC=F FHEF  RRK

water during the first half of 2023 are BrzEEELERBEN
summarised in the table below: o
For the For the
six months six months
ended ended Percentage
30 June 2023 30 June 2022 Change
Bz HZE
—E-=F —E-C
~A=TH AA=1H
LEREA R A BALEE
Waste water treatment ~ J5/KRIEE
volume (1000 m?) (FIFH*) 845,823 840,525 1%
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.

GREENTECH

As of 30 June 2023, the Group held a 69.7%
stake in Everbright Greentech, which is listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
Everbright Greentech focuses on integrated
biomass utilisation, hazardous and solid waste
treatment, environmental remediation, and new
energy, among others. It positions itself as an
integrated energy service provider of “Zero-
Carbon Park” which integrates solar energy
storage, virtual power plants, energy saving
and carbon reduction.

As of 30 June 2023, Everbright Greentech
had invested in and held 132 projects, with a
total investment of approximately RMB30.44
billion. These projects are designed to have
an annual biomass raw material processing
capacity of 8,139,800 tonnes, an annual
household waste processing capacity of
4,215,750 tonnes, and an annual hazardous
and solid waste processing capacity of
2,466,400 tonnes, an annual on-grid electricity
of 6,992,208,100 kWh, and an annual steam
supply of 6,046,700 tonnes, and solar and wind
power installed capacity of 171.83 megawatt.
In addition, Everbright Greentech undertook 16
environmental remediation services (excluding
services that had been completed and
delivered).
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GREENTECH (continued)

As of 30 June 2023, Everbright Greentech’s
solar energy projects are summarised as
follows:

33

EHME(E)

ARERIR(E)
BE-_Z-_=xA=+
B AREERRRNREE
BEEBERBEOT ¢

Designed Installed Capacity

Project Status Number of Projects (MWp)
18 B kA TH B Eg (@) BETEBAROLR)
In operation 20 35.44
g
Under construction 2 30.99
T2

In terms of market expansion, in the first half
of 2023, Everbright Greentech made every
effort to revitalise its existing business, actively
promoted business extension and expansion,
and studied and assessed industry trends, in
order to plan new business directions such as
smart energy. During the period under review,
Everbright Greentech secured 3 new projects,
with a total investment of approximately
RMB238 million. It also newly undertook 4
environmental remediation services, with a
total contract value of approximately RMB92
million. The new projects are designed to have
an annual biomass raw material processing
capacity of 50,000 tonnes and a solar power
installed capacity of 32.5 MWp.
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Business Overview (continued) EBWMEE)

With respect to project construction,
during the period under review, Everbright
Greentech had 4 projects that had completed
construction and commenced operation,
contributing a designed annual household
waste processing capacity of 182,500 tonnes,
a designed annual hazardous and solid waste
processing capacity of 266,000 tonnes and a
solar power installed capacity of 2.39 MWp.
2 environmental remediation services were
completed and delivered. Moreover, 1 project
commenced construction, with a designed
annual household waste processing capacity
of 146,000 tonnes, and 4 environmental
remediation services started their respective
remediation work in succession.

In terms of operations management, during the
period under review, with respect to integrated
biomass utilisation projects, Everbright
Greentech took the lead in the industry
in launching a pilot program and system
dedicated to the front-end collection and
storage of biomass fuels, which resisted the
challenges brought by the imbalance between
supply and demand in the market, and boosted
the economic benefits of the projects.

lll.  GREENTECH (continued) = REBRE)
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GREENTECH (continued)

During the period under review, the Group’s
greentech sector contributed an EBITDA of
HK$1,281,035,000, a decrease of 4% as
compared with the first half of 2022. Greentech
contributed a net profit attributable to the
Group of HK$195,503,000, a decrease of
34% as compared with the first half of 2022.
The profit decreased primarily due to the
decrease in revenue and profit for construction
services following the adjustment of the
development strategy. In connection with the
operation service, the unit treatment fee for the
hazardous waste and solid waste continued to
drop resulting from the low waste production
quantities in the market. Nevertheless, the
integrated biomass utilisation projects achieved
significant improvements in the operational
efficiency contributing to a substantial year-on-
year growth in the operating gross margin of
the biomass segment, offsetting some of the
profit decline.
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Business Overview (continued) ERBEE)
ll.  GREENTECH (continued) = HEBIRE)
Major operating data relating to greentech TEC=FEYEF  BEeR
during the first half of 2023 are summarised in RZEEELZERBEN
the table below: N
For the For the
six months six months
ended ended Percentage
30 June 2023 30 June 2022 Change
Bz HZE
—BC=fF —E-CF
AA=1H ~NA=Z+H
EAEA R A BALEE
Waste processing SRR E (1)
volume (tonnes) 1,769,000 1,717,000 3%
Biomass raw material  &#WERMHEEE
processing volume (I8)
(tonnes) 3,750,000 4,266,000 -12%
Hazardous and solid EEERES(H)
waste processing
volume (tonnes) 186,000 223,000 -17%
Steam supply volume T4t FES (1)
(tonnes) 1,400,000 1,172,000 19%
On-grid electricity HREECKRE)
(MWh) 3,237,000 3,133,233 3%
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V.

ENVIROTECH

Being the Group’s engine for technology R&D
and innovation, envirotech, by leveraging its
R&D platforms located in different places, has
been focusing on key research areas such
as household waste treatment, treatment
of various hazardous and solid waste,
agricultural and forestry biomass utilisation,
water environment management, big data and
intelligent control. As the Group’s platform
for core technological innovation and results
commercialisation, envirotech is dedicated to
tackling difficulties of environmental protection
processes and technologies and aims at
cutting-edge technologies worldwide.

During the period under review, envirotech
adhered to value creation that is driven by
technology and continued to cater to the
Group’s needs and future development and
market demands. By doing so, it aims to
become a first-class technological innovation
center, empower the development of all
businesses of the Group, and provide
technological inspiration and technical
security for the Group. In the first half of
2023, the Group and Qingdao University of
Technology jointly established the “Engineering
and Technology Centre of New Pollutant
Monitoring and Control relating to Household
Waste Treatment for China’s Environmental
Protection”.

37

4T UK B4 45 )
%i%m?//m

.

Ha b

VE RN & B B 3 Al &9
1% - IR ENE LR
VM ETEe  BEAEN
RERE - SEAEERE -
BWEMBERNR - KIRFA
B RBEBEEEEHSEE
ZheEl  EIERRRIER
T2E 2N - B BB IRIR
BRI » RAEEZ LK
gl Rk ReE(L TS o

CIEEERA - T FEfT BT M)
AEBEER -ERAKR @
Mm% - RS EAIEE
B TE—RESAIFF
Do BASBERIBEEBER
EReL - IREBHRREM
FMRE  c — ==& ¥
FAEEHEESET RS
Efl%ﬁaiﬂ% RS
i&féﬁ%ﬁ/ﬁ ) B2 8] B
TREEMHL] -



38

China Everbright Environment Group Limited
FEERRE(EE)BRAF

Business Review and Prospects 27 o RE

OPERATING RESULTS (continued) KRR

Business Overview (continued)
IV.  ENVIROTECH (continued)

EHME (&)
/. s (E)

In the first half of 2023, the Group’s major TEC=F P¥E - KEE
technology R&D progress and results for (BRI S &b
both traditional and new business areas are MEERIEHEER MKRE
summarised as follows: WEHMRN

Business Area Research Result(s)/Topic(s)

EFAEE MEKRRE

Traditional Business e The research on energy saving and efficiency

Areas enhancement technologies for waste-to-energy
BRI E incineration power plants resulted in various

technical solutions and has been applied in Suzhou
Waste-to-energy Project.

Iy 3] K B T JRR B RS 3 U T A T K % TE R T 77
RIEFHM N IREEIAEEMA °

The new flue gas recirculation technology was
applied in the Group’s Jiangsu Wujiang Waste-to-
energy Project (“Wujiang Project”) Phase Il as a
demonstration.

FAE R B EREMARAS BRI RESIE
B(TRIIEE ) HETREEA -

The Group’s self-developed 850 tonnes/day wet
deacidification technology entered the supply and
installation stage.

AER B 8 W B H8501, B IRE B BE B 11 i A it
BREEER °

The dry anaerobic technology demonstration
project in Pei County was carried out, integrating
the results of a national research topic on
technologies and equipment for the high-value
utilisation of rural and county household waste and
secondary pollution control, to design and develop
a complete set of dry anaerobic technology and
equipment.

HETREARATHIEE - SEBRAENEE
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Business Overview (continued)

V.

ENVIROTECH (continued)

Business Area
TG EE

/. s ()

Research Result(s)/Topic(s)

MRERRE

Traditional Business
Areas (Cont’d)
BB (&)

The Group cooperated with The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University to develop technologies
for the high-value utilisation of bottom slag for
the production of recycled building materials, and
put forward a proposal on the recycling of waste
incineration residue in Hong Kong for the HKSAR.
REESEEERETIAZAFRESEERSERE
EMEAN - REBREBTRE S A RIERE
BEEFR -

The automated combustion control (ACC) and
automated frequency control (AFC) technologies
have been applied to 6 projects of the Group and
scheduled to be applied to another 30 projects.
B8R E 6l (ACC) & B B A= 2 il (AFC) BT 2
ERRAEKE6EER @ SHENSIN0EIE B #TT
FER -

The new advanced leachate treatment
demonstration project completed the installation,
check, debugging and trial run.
BRBRHERERIER GRS LETRRBI
AR EFETIIE »

The research on biomass high-efficiency pyrolysis
and gasification technology has resulted in a
complete set of biomass gasification heating
technology solutions and equipment selection,
and the project has been actively promoted for
demonstration.

EYERBARTCBMAREREENEDER
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Business Overview (continued)
IV.  ENVIROTECH (continued)

EHME(E)
o, Gk (&)

Business Area Research Result(s)/Topic(s)
EFAEE MR R RRE

Traditional Business e
Areas (Cont’d)
B (E)

The self-developed hydraulic ash cleaning
technology was applied in the Group’s individual
projects.
BEHBEHKDBEREMENRAEE@EAIEL ER
TR{bEA -

The anaerobic membrane bioreactor (AnMBR)
technology was installed in the Group’s project in
Suzhou as a demonstration. The technology was
being tested and put into a trial run.

JBR 48 B2 £ ) = FE B8 (AnMBR) 3 iy 52 AR &% )1 7R 8578 B
B RRARANMAETTRER -

New Business Areas e

R AE

A set of highly efficient, safe and automated mobile
selective catalytic reduction (“SCR”) regeneration
technology solution was completed and began pilot
production.

TR—ESW  ZE - BPEERNBHHEE
(b8 R([SCRI) B AR A R 2 EAFABEER -

The pilot test for the R&D of cracking and recycling
technology for low-value plastics was completed
and the feasibility of the technology was verified.
REEBHAUBORTEREETKPARAR - T
SATIH BB -
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V.

ENVIROTECH (continued)

Business Area
TG EE

EBME(E)
/. s ()

Research Result(s)/Topic(s)

MRERRE

New Business Areas
(Cont’d)
MR Es (&)

The design of software and hardware design for
the information technology management system
at the Group’s Yancheng Recycling Sorting Centre
Project was completed, realising the informatised
and transparent management of materials in the
recycling sorting centre.

RSB EAEERSRPOIERNEEERE
REMEREMG R AIBRREBLEERIRP LY
HeE et - BAXEE -

A carbon asset development pilot project was
conducted according to the international Verified
Carbon Reduction Standard (“VCS”), completed the
third-party on-site audit of the VCS for the Group’s
Wuwei Waste-to-energy Project in Gansu Province,
and collected relevant information of more than
10 waste-to-energy projects of the Group, to get
prepared for the restart of the national Certified
Voluntary Carbon Emission Reduction (CCER)
programme.

B R AR BWORBHE ([ VCS ) Rk & 2 8 3
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V.

ENVIROTECH (continued)

With an eye to future development, during the
period under review, the Group closely followed
the national strategic direction and the trend
of technological development in the field of
environmental protection, and commenced
cutting-edge research and tracking in the
industry in the areas of new energy, fields
relating to agriculture, rural areas and farmers,
circular economy, carbon neutrality and new
technology, among others. The Group also
relied on over 10 flexible teams to carry out
technological research and exploration of
application in four major areas, surrounding the
Group’s main business, agriculture, resource
recycling and new energy.
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As of 30 June 2023, patents that were held and BHE-_ZE =A==+
major technical essays published by the Group B A& I?—rﬁ?ﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁ
are listed in the table below: BERMAXEXRBILN
™

As of

30 June

First half 2023

of 2023 (accumulated)

HZE

TR

—E=-=% XA=+1+H

g (R&h)

Granted patents RIESEFI(E) 122 1,778

Invention patents ZEERE R 16 183

Utility model patents ERAEF 98 1,273

Software patents B ZEEF 3 270

Appearance patents HNERELF 5 52

Major technical essays BERIBHKR(EB) 0 87
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V.

EQUIPMENT MANUFACTURING

With Everbright Environmental Technical
Equipment (Changzhou) Limited* being
the platform, the Group’s equipment
manufacturing sector strives to upgrade its
factories from the country’s “Green Factories”
to “Zero-carbon Factories”, promoting the
integration of advanced manufacturing and
modern services. With the incorporation of
the Group’s greenergy-related business,
equipment manufacturing fostered a new
development paradigm for the “Intelligently
Made by Everbright”, continuing to solidify its
industry-leading position.

In terms of market expansion, during the
period under review, in the environmental
equipment market, equipment manufacturing
insisted on market orientation and relied on
a flexible team based on resource allocation
to tap into the small-scale grate market in the
county area, secured an equipment service
order for the waste-to-energy project in
Hau Giang, Vietnam, and signed the Dawu
Procurement-Construction contract in Hubei
Province, achieving good results in overall
business expansion. In the first half of 2023,
equipment manufacturing signed a total of 7
external sales contracts and sold 18 sets of
equipment to external market, including 11 sets
of incinerators, 5 sets of flue gas purification
systems, and 2 sets of leachate treatment
systems. The total value of contracts relating
to the external sales of complete sets of
equipment amounted to RMB265 million.
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V.

EQUIPMENT MANUFACTURING (continued)

In terms of equipment supply and after-sales
services, during the period under review,
equipment manufacturing commenced 13
service items, spanning Vietnam and 8
provinces, municipalities and autonomous
regions in China. It provided 5 sets of grate
furnaces to projects of the Group and external
clients, which have a total designed daily
waste processing capacity of 2,750 tonnes. In
addition, it sold 37 sets of equipment, covering
grate furnace systems and leachate treatment
systems. It also signed 76 contracts in relation
to external after-sales services, with a total
contract value of approximately RMB35.11
million. Throughout the first half of 2023,
the sector provided 154 after-sales service
projects, of which 101 were internal projects
and 53 were external projects.

In terms of equipment, processes and
technology R&D, during the period under
review, equipment manufacturing insisted on
market-based and innovative development,
and carried out a number of research and
development projects in an orderly manner,
with the major achievements summarised as
follows:

° Completed the trial manufacturing of
small-scale domestic waste incinerator
samples, using the self-developed
and designed “fast-mounted grate
incineration system, low-emission
flue gas treatment system, integrated
container leachate treatment system,
integrated container leachate treatment
system, heat or steam residual heat
utilisation system, automatic combustion
control (ACC) system” process line,
which is suitable for a small tonnage
of waste incinerators in rural areas and
counties.
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V.

EQUIPMENT MANUFACTURING (continued)

The water-cooled grate package has
been installed and commissioned in a
number of the Group’s projects in Xiao
County of Anhui Province and Lianshui
County of Jiangsu Province and has been
in stable operation for approximately half
a year.

Domestic SCR technology with high
sulphur, high alumina and high alkali
resistance was applied in Quzhou
Project, achieving a high denitrification
rate, low ammonia escape, low
resistance and low clogging at low
temperatures.

Optimisation of the production line
of self-manufactured ultrafiltration
membranes was completed and entered
the testing stage.

Ultra-high-pressure reverse osmosis
technology achieved stage-by-stage
results and the Group completed testing
in individual projects.

Trial application of high-efficiency
baking soda deacidification technology
was tested at Quzhou Project and
commenced at Wujiang Project.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 13 July 2023 and 14 July 20283, Everbright
Water issued the 2023 second tranche MTNs with a
principal amount of RMB1.5 billion, an interest rate
of 2.97% per annum, in the national inter-bank bond
market. The proceeds from the issuance were used
for replenishing the working capital of Everbright
Water’s subsidiaries and repaying the interest-
bearing debts of Everbright Water or its subsidiaries.

On 21 August 2023 and 22 August 2023, Everbright
Water issued the 2023 third tranche MTNs with a
principal amount of RMB1 billion, an interest rate of
2.82% per annum, in the national inter-bank bond
market. The proceeds from the issuance were used
to replenish the working capital of the Everbright
Water’s subsidiaries.

BUSINESS PROSPECTS

The world’s economic growth has been on a “long
and winding path”, with continued geopolitical
conflicts. In the first half of 2023, China’s economy
grew by 5.5% as compared with the corresponding
period of last year, taking a leading position among
major economies across the globe. The intensive
release of new measures by the government at
all levels in China to stabilise the economy has
made all parties hold a positive attitude toward the
country’s economic development in the second half
of 2023. In general, China’s economy has strong
resilience, great potential and sufficient vitality,
with the fundamentals for the long-term remaining
positive. This will continue to provide stable macro
policy and economic environment for the high-
quality development of the environmental protection
industry, which will continue to play an important part
in facilitating China’s green economic development.
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BUSINESS PROSPECTS (continued)

The National Conference on Ecological and
Environmental Protection, which was held in July
2023, stressed that the coming five years will be
critical to the building of a beautiful China and that
it is imperative to make remarkable achievements
in promoting the significant improvement of urban
and rural living environment and building a beautiful
China, supporting high-quality development with a
high-quality ecological environment, and accelerating
the advancement of modernisation featuring
harmony between humanity and nature. China’s
building of an ecological civilisation has entered a
critical period with a key strategic focus on carbon
reduction, as evidenced by the country’s approval of
the “Opinions on Promoting the Gradual Transition
from Control of Total Amount and Intensity of
Energy Consumption to Control of Total Amount and
Intensity of Carbon Emissions” and other important
policies which will continue to inspire confidence and
boost development of the domestic ecological and
environmental protection industry.

The year 2023 marks the 30th anniversary of the
Company’s incorporation and the 20th anniversary
of its pivot to environmental protection. Having
achieved the development goal of “becoming the
largest environmental enterprise in China” over the
past two decades, the Group now has shifted its
vision to becoming a stronger and better enterprise.
In this critical period of transformation and upgrading,
the Group will maintain its strategic focus and make
progress with stability, while carrying forward the
enterprise spirit with unwavering commitment to its
corporate mission of being “Devoted to Ecology and
Environment for a Beautiful China” and its corporate
pursuit of “Creating Better Investment Value and
Undertaking More Social Responsibility”. Striving to
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BUSINESS PROSPECTS (continued)

be a “World-class Integrated Environmental Service
Provider with Chinese Characteristics”, the Group will
also adhere to the Two Development Directions and
the Three Major Business Areas; promote four major
transformations, namely the transformation from
the investment-driven development to development
driven by a balance of asset-light and asset-heavy
businesses, the transformation from construction
service revenue to operation service revenue as
the major source of revenue, the transformation
from the expansion-driven development mode to
management-oriented development mode, and the
transformation from an enterprise with technological
strengths to a technology-based enterprise; and
strengthen the six pillars, including enhanced effort
to expand market, technological innovation, cost
reduction and efficiency enhancement, capital
security, risk prevention and control, and talent
support.

With the strategic guidance of the Board and support
from the stakeholders, the Group is fully committed
to carrying out all tasks with unwavering effort, and
promoting high-quality development, to celebrate
the 30th anniversary of the Company’s incorporation
and the 20th anniversary of its pivot to environmental
protection with outstanding performance. Through
these efforts, the Group will lay a solid foundation
for future development and make significant
contributions to the building of a beautiful China from
a stronger position, and with a longer-term vision and
more practical commitment.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWEAD

FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 30 June 2023, the Group’s total assets
amounted to approximately HK$189,423,150,000
with net assets amounting to HK$65,940,734,000.
Net asset value per share attributable to equity
holders of the Company was HK$7.879 per share,
representing an increase of 2% as compared to
HK$7.712 per share as at the end of 2022, As at
30 June 2023, gearing ratio (calculated by total
liabilities over total assets) of the Group was 65%,
representing a decrease of 2 percentage point as
compared with that of 67% as at the end of 2022.

FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group adopts a prudent approach on cash and
financial management to ensure proper risk control
and low cost of funds. It finances its operations
primarily with internally generated cash flow and loan
facilities from banks. As at 30 June 2023, the Group
had cash and bank balances of HK$8,870,532,000,
representing a decrease of 25% as compared to
HK$11,782,743,000 at the end of 2022. Most of
the Group’s cash and bank balance, representing
approximately 98%, was denominated in Hong Kong
dollars and Renminbi.

BORROWINGS

The Group is dedicated to enhancing the ways
of financing and improving banking facilities to
reserve funding to support the development of the
environmental protection business. As at 30 June
2023, the Group had outstanding interest-bearing
borrowings of HK$93,360,234,000, representing a
similar level as compared to HK$94,724,500,000 as
at the end of 2022. The borrowings included secured
interest-bearing borrowings of HK$41,596,413,000
and unsecured interest-bearing borrowings of
HK$51,763,821,000. The Group’s borrowings are
mainly denominated in Renminbi, representing
approximately 77% of the total, and the remainder is
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, US dollars, EURO
and Polish zloty. Most of the Group’s borrowings are
at floating rates. As at 30 June 2023, the Group had
banking facilities of HK$101,831,034,000, of which
HK$24,226,725,000 have not been utilised. The
banking facilities are of 1 to 18-year terms.

49
RS AR R
R—_ZTE-_=9,A=+H
KEBZ2HBEE ’77%/%35”%
189,423,150,0007¢ ° F & E A
75 #65,940,734,0007C ° AR Al
B ARG SR AEFES
BT 8797T E_E::Eirﬁé
BT TI2TL EH2% c RZE
—=FXA=1+H " &R jZﬁ
EARLER(NBEaERNAEE

SHERE)ABS% BT - 4
FK267% NEK2MEH 75 B ©

MBEIR
$’§ lﬁiﬁ%

MM —FT— .
AEEFERE RRITEBRNE
%8,870,532,0007C * B_-T ==
Eiﬁz/%vﬂ%ﬁ 782,743,000
H25% o REBARBES R
RITHEBEREBRARE - &
598% -

BRI

s

i oA
Ji)
s
>+
B
i
>
el
=
;}é{\

|1y

|| GH B X B

i+

& 10

2P
W2 © Ty
|13z

A
!
N

o
B
©
>
~
N
&)
o
o
=)

X
S

—

o ¢t (N
(<]

S
Dt
ks

#
o
oh

- oot

[©) ‘E—ﬁ N
H

o N

O it

o

i
Wi
it

\
A

S

413

9O Slem 1 Hr S S A kD SR B m

% T |

3| (I8

&% ORI

o 4 N4

-H

N

E‘\_

o
o)
w
0]
N
e
[e)
o
o

S
A

TR EE I

\
/

BB e s
Sy o B
WA

>_
il

T
Bl
=

B
AR e iy
¥t ||| F A 0R

T 3F - FEHE

o Mok mE - Foy B

N 3% IF

N
3
B

NIy
[
2

3
4}4.,

23
S
:

i

L

Al

%
2
Rl

==

3 o1
paig

101,8 1034 00
24,226,725, 0007% 4 H:n’
HE - RTRMEAIE18

=
w
o

\
>H )

e
o



50 China Everbright Environment Group Limited

Management Discussion and Analysis B2 Bt 2 47

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISKS

The Company’s financial statements are
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, which is the
functional currency of the Company. The Group’s
investments made outside Hong Kong (including
mainland China) may incur foreign exchange risks.
The Group’s operations are predominantly based
in mainland China, which makes up over 98% of its
total investments and revenue. The Group’s assets,
borrowings and major transactions are mainly
denominated in Renminbi, and as such, it forms a
natural hedging effect. With this in mind, the Group
also pursues an optimal allocation of borrowings in
different currencies while setting appropriate levels
of borrowing in non-base currencies, and adopting
proper financial instruments to closely manage
foreign exchange risks.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Certain banking facilities and lease liabilities of the
Group were secured by revenue and receivables
in connection with the Group’s service concession
arrangements, bank deposits, mortgages over
property, plants and equipment, right-of-use assets
and the equity interests of certain subsidiaries of
the Company. As at 30 June 2023, the aggregate
net book value of pledged assets and equity
interests in subsidiaries amounted to approximately
HK$104,394,681,000.

COMMITMENTS

As at 30 June 2023, the Group had purchase
commitments of HK$4,443,762,000 outstanding in
connection with the construction contracts.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 30 June 2023, the Company granted financial
guarantee to its subsidiaries. The Board considers it
is not probable that a claim will be made against the
Company under the guarantee. The maximum liability
of the Company as at 30 June 2023 for the provision
of the guarantee was HK$632,732,000.

INTERNAL MANAGEMENT

The Group adheres to the management principle
of “People-oriented, Pragmatism, Creativity
and Systematic Management”, and has built
a comprehensive management structure to
maximise efficiency. The Group’s management
holds Management Decision Committee meeting(s)
regularly to review current operations and
management, with a view to promoting the corporate
sustainable development. The responsibilities of
each functional department and business sector
of the Group are clear with various comprehensive
management systems. Internal control procedures
are sound and have been implemented effectively.
The Company’s audit department performs
its internal monitoring functions to ensure that
each functional department and business sector
strictly comply with the relevant internal control
requirements.

The Group is committed to building a comprehensive
risk management culture. It implements the risk
management model of “Integration of Policy,
Procedure and System with Risk-oriented” to
comprehensively strengthen its risk management
and control. During the period under review, the
Group updated the list of risk factors according to the
progress of the implementation of risk management
system, with a view to continuously enhancing
the systematisation and normalisation level of risk
management.
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INTERNAL MANAGEMENT (continued)

During the period under review, the Group continued
to uphold the fundamental principle of “maintaining
safe and stable operations while ensuring
compliance with relevant emission standards” and
strictly complied with the relevant national laws
and regulations. In terms of safety, environment
and occupational health, it proactively carried out
routine inspections. Apart from incorporating “Safe
Production Month” into its operation, the Group
paid close attention to safety and environmental
management and carried out comprehensive hidden
hazards identification and rectification in relation to
safety and environment risk to ensure all projects,
whether under construction or in operation, strictly
complied with all production safety policies. These
steps secured the stable operation of environmental
protection projects including waste-to-energy,
integrated biomass utilisation, waste water treatment
projects, etc, while enhancing economic benefits.
Besides, the Group continued to move forward with
project construction works while accelerating the
finalisation of projects in the preparatory stage. It also
went through due formalities to ensure that all project
construction works were carried out in compliance
with laws and regulations. At the same time, the
Group continued to put more efforts into safety
management of construction projects to ensure
professional and safe construction.
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HUMAN RESOURCES

Human Resources are the key strategy of corporate
development which require appropriate personnel to
execute this core strategy. The Group highly values
its human resources management and puts great
emphasis on staff training. It believes that realising
the full potential of its employees is crucial to its long-
term growth. The Group continues to improve its
human resources through internal training as well as
local, overseas, and on-campus recruitment.

During the period under review, the Group continued
to adopt the prevention measures of the COVID-19
pandemic with reference to its changes. Meanwhile,
the Group has issued the “Notice on the Preparation
for Normalization of Production and Pandemic
Prevention” and led the employees to return to
normal, ensured employee health and reduced
impact on the Group.

To cope with the development requirement of the
Group, the Group successively held the seminars
on safety and environmental management, strategic
optimization, tendering management, etc. through
online and offline blended training mode. The
management and employees were well equipped with
relevant knowledge and skills with a view to address
new opportunities and challenges.

The Group makes full use of the advantages of
diversified business to provide employees with a
broad development platform. In addition to cross-
sector and cross-regional job rotation, the Group has
arranged a number of internal recruitments to provide
employees the privilege to apply for the vacancy of
different departments at the head office which can
provide the employees the opportunity to develop
their potential by changing different position.
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HUMAN RESOURCES (continued)

As at 30 June 2023, the Group had approximately
12,340 employees. Details of the total employee
benefit expense for the period under review are set
out in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.
Employees within the Group are remunerated
according to their qualifications, experience, job
nature, performance and with reference to market
conditions. Apart from a discretionary performance
bonus, the Group also provides other benefits such
as medical insurance and a mandatory provident fund
scheme to employees in Hong Kong.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
During the period under review, the Group
continuously implemented relevant work of the
risk management system to effectively control the
principal risks faced by the Group.

1. Accounts receivable risk

Affected by the macro economy, the ability
of governments at all levels to pay has been
impaired, increasing the likelihood of deferring
settlement of national subsidies, waste and
waste water treatment fees, as well as the
possibility of increase in overdue accounts
receivable. Meanwhile, with the implementation
of the new policies for national subsidies, the
problem of the mismatch between the speed of
the confirmation of national subsidies and that
of its settlement will be further accentuated,
which will lead to a higher possibility of a
continuous increase in the Group’s accounts
receivable and overdue accounts receivable.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
(continued)

1.

Accounts receivable risk (continued)
Responsive measures: 1. The Company
comprehensively implemented the Management
Method on Accounts Receivable and
conducted analysis on the overall status of
accounts receivable regularly. Based on the
analysis, the Company formulated targeted
recovery objectives and plans to ensure
the reasonableness of credit terms and the
effective operation of recovery mechanism.
2. The Company has commenced projections
on cash flow in full operation cycle, conducted
regular analysis on cash flow and estimated
its capital requirements to enhance the capital
utilization efficiency and hence satisfy the
liquidity requirements for daily operation and
corporate development. 3. The Company
implemented the responsibilities for recovery
of receivables and adopted the measure of
collecting accounts receivable by designated
officers in a designated exchange group
to urge project companies to enhance
communication with the governments, and
included the collection of receivables into the
annual appraisal of the project companies.
4. The Company explored diversified collection
channels and the use of various payment
options to reduce the amount of accounts
receivables through multiple approaches,
such as “settlement of historical arrears by
instalments” and “offsetting debts with the
concession rights of existing environment
assets”. It also fully utilized financial
instruments to accelerate cash recovery.

Environmental compliance and safety
management risk

The implementation of the Production Safety
Law and the Regulations on Automatic
Monitoring Data Marking for Household Waste-
to-Energy Plants and other regulations has
refined the regulatory requirements and the
basis for penalties, and has imposed higher
requirements on refinement of operation.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
(continued)

2.

Environmental compliance and safety
management risk (continued)

Responsive measures: 1. The Company
compiled and published the “Compilation
of Safety and Environmental Management
Systems”, vigorously developed the
standardized management system of
“prevention in advance, emergency response
in process and follow-up” and further
strengthened the grading assessment
management on operating projects by dividing
into four safety and environmental grades, i.e.
A+, A, B and C. 2. Pushing forward the “Three-
year Action Plan for Specialized Production
Safety Rectifications”, the Company carried
out group-wide production safety general
inspection with comprehensive investigations
conducted in major areas to actively eliminate
hidden hazards and alleviate safety risks.
3. The Company has soundly improved the
detailed criteria of assessment on the relevant
parties and comprehensively implemented
the Production Safety-related Restrictions
to strengthen the whole-process supervision
of relevant parties, in particular key relevant
parties. 4. The Company continuously improved
the overall quality of safety and environmental
management personnel and the awareness
of safety and environmental issues of all staff
members through systematic training. It also
carried out works in respect of certification
of safety and environmental management
qualification. 5. The Company has
strengthened the analysis and early warning of
safety and environmental risks by integrating
online monitoring and offline supervision
through the safety and environmental
information management system. Fully
capitalizing on technological means, the
Company has reinforced the management over
safety and environmental issues.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
(continued)

3.

Market competition risk

As the environmental industry is currently
in a phase of in-depth adjustments, the
Group will face brand new business models
and competitors under the new market
environment. The Group needs to effectively
deploy its capital, resources and personnel
in accordance with market changes in order
to utilize its strength in scale and form a
synergistic advantage between new and
existing businesses. The Group proactively
explored new business areas and has secured
new projects in the new areas, but the
overall competitive advantage has yet to be
developed.

Responsive measures: 1. The Company
continued to deeply explore the traditional
businesses with a focus on upstream
and downstream industries with a view to
extending the length of the traditional industrial
chain and actively developing the business
development layout of “one principal business
and multiple specialized businesses with
co-development of asset-light and asset-
heavy businesses”. 2. By forming the market
development model of “coordination and
organization by headquarters + expansion by
business sectors”, the Group reinforced its
business development momentum by means
of joint business development via synergetic
co-operation and mutual co-ordination
among various business sectors. Besides,
the Company evaluated the business model
needed under the new industrial development
demands and their impact on the existing
business model of the Group by such means
as conducting researches, communication, as
well as collection and analysis of information,
and formulated mechanisms for effective
communication and development between
the project development teams and technical
teams, so as to expand the new businesses
in a reasonable and efficient manner.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
(continued)

3.

Market competition risk (continued)

3. The Company gained comprehensive
understanding of the industry development,
current market conditions and cutting-edge
technologies by strengthening the exchange
with competitors and partners, and stepped
up its efforts in the research on new sectors,
new technologies, policy directions and
government requirements with benchmarking
against industry peers conducted on a regular
basis. 4. The Company established an adaptive
working group to actively study various policies
and documents including the deployment in
key industrial sectors and the prevention and
control of agricultural diffused pollution sector,
“Peaking Carbon Emissions and Achieving
Carbon Neutrality” and ecological protection
and management of key river basins nationwide
with a view to discovering new development
opportunities.

Staff turnover risk

Due to the characteristics of the environmental
industry, most of the newly-commenced
projects of the Group are located in remote area
with relatively poor surrounding environment
and lack attractiveness to talents, which led
to the possibility of a high staff turnover rate.
In addition, with the increase in the number of
new operating projects year by year, the current
backup capacity of management and technical
personnel at the project company level shows
a higher possibility of failing to meet the rapid
growth of project demand, and the negative
impact on the stability of operation continues to
increase.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
(continued)

4.

Staff turnover risk (continued)

Responsive measures: 1. To provide more
development opportunities for its employees, the
Company has developed a vast development
platform, forging a multi-lane career development
path of “management, skills and competency”.
The Company carried out work in relation to
assessment and recruitment of professional and
technical staff and commenced the selection
of core talents to build up its international
talent pool, at the same time expanding the
development paths for professional and technical
talents. 2. By optimizing the selection and
appointment system, the Company selected
outstanding talents through internal competition,
and hence effectively solved the problem of
vacancies of responsible officers and part-time
employment in certain project companies. The
Company also established new development
paths for cadres in key management positions,
and revitalized both internal and external
talent markets. 3. The Company enriched its
communication channels and strengthened the
multi-level communication channels between
the management and employees, so as to
understand the actual needs of employees and
eliminate misunderstandings or conflicts through
effective communication, hence avoid the loss of
talent. 4. The Company has built up its reserve
talent pool and enriched and improved the
talent pool regularly based on the appraisals.
It has also improved the relevance of training
in order to enhance the comprehensive quality
and professional skills of its general managers,
supervisors and backup management personnel
in all aspects. 5. The Company has further
improved its staff assignment through on-
campus recruitment, promotion on websites,
referral by internal staff as well as open internal
selection.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
(continued)

5.

Procurement compliance risk

Given the increasingly stringent procurement
compliance requirements, any compliance-
related issues such as bid rigging and
collusive bidding, fraud and corruption may
have a significant negative impact on the
Group’s reputation. Despite the Group’s
efforts in continuously improving the existing
procurement-related systems and procurement
electronic transaction platform, as the
procurement scale is still relatively large as a
whole, the possibility that systems might not
be strictly implemented has increased, which
may affect the overall compliance level of the
Group’s procurement.

Responsive measures: 1. On the basis of
amendments to the Procurement Management
System, the Company formulated a series
of management systems and operation
manuals such as the Working Guidelines
for Bid Rigging and Collusive Bidding and
the Notice on Reporting Businesses and
Companies Run by Procurement Personnel
and Relevant Personnel and Their Relatives. 2.
The Company optimized the functions of the
tendering and procurement platform with an
aim to enhance the compliance level, through
which it has prevented collusive bidding and
bid rigging through modules such as “Feature
Codes Inspection” and “Affiliation Inspection”.
3. The Company improved its “Blacklist”
management and published the Interim
Administrative Measures for “Briber Blacklist”.
It also constantly updated the Briber Blacklist
in the tendering and procurement platform
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
(continued)

5.

Procurement compliance risk(continued)
system. Bribers are prohibited from any form
of cooperation with the Group during the
punishment period. 4. The Company enhanced
the training and warning education on
professional skills of procurement personnel,
and implemented procurement patrol
inspection to reinforce a strong firewall against
non-compliance and non-disciplinary tendering
and procurement practices. 5. The Company
strengthened internal and external inspections
and carried out self-evaluation of integrity
performance from time to time. Self-evaluation
and supervision over daily procurement
work were conducted on a monthly basis.
Once problems were identified, closed-loop
management measures would be adopted in
a timely manner and the relevant personnel
would be held accountable according to the
Accountability Management Measures on
Non-compliant Procurement to eradicate all
violation incidents.

Operation stability risk

As affected by factors such as the
macroeconomic environment, industrial
restructuring and continuously saturated
industry development, there were increasing
possibilities that some of the projects might
face the problem of insufficient incoming
materials (e.g. volume of waste, waste water,
hazardous waste, etc.) and inability to meet the
designed treatment capacity, which may affect
the stability of operation.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
(continued)

6.

Operation stability risk (continued)
Responsive measures: 1. With market
changes and policy changes as its main
focus, the Company communicated with the
competent authorities in a timely manner to
guarantee the production capacity load rate
of the operating projects. For the problem of
insufficient waste, the Company alleviated the
problem through multiple approaches, such as
adopting synergistic disposal, breaking regional
boundaries, improving the environmental
impact assessment on technical improvement,
and actively expanding new business. For the
problem of insufficient waste water, having due
regard for the risk of insufficient production
capacity, the Company safeguarded the
production capacity load rate of operating
projects through various measures such as
setting the guaranteed water volume and the
scope of licensed water collection areas at the
preliminary and investment stages of projects.
For the problem of insufficient biomass fuel,
the solid waste center organized the solid
waste resources with resources sharing among
various projects through centralized allocation,
thereby enhancing the competitiveness in the
acquisition of fuel. 2. The Company organized
different sectors to comprehensively carry out
benchmarking of operation based on the actual
condition of their businesses. Taking advanced
projects and advanced indicators as benchmark,
it accurately identified gaps in terms of indicator
and management, and enhanced the operation
performance through technical improvement
and update of management approaches and
methods. 3. The Company deeply explored the
potential of projects and coordinated the relevant
sectors to adopt various “project+” initiatives
such as waste synergy, heat supply synergy and
photovoltaic synergy, and actively promoted work
in relation to creation of new revenue streams
and hence increased the revenue from operation
services.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
(continued)

7.

Cost control risk

As affected by the national macro-policies,
regulatory requirements and other factors,
the prices of operation materials such as eco-
friendly consumables and chemical agents
continued to increase, which may in turn affect
the overall operating costs of each of the
project company. On the other hand, due to
overall market changes and other factors, the
prices of cement and other bulk construction
materials as well as labor costs continued to
rise or fluctuated significantly, which may affect
the overall control of construction costs.

Responsive measures: 1. The Company has
stepped up its efforts in the promotion and
application of technological innovation and new
technologies such as smart power plant and
high-parameter generating units to enhance
the operation efficiency. It has also reduced
the amount of eco-friendly consumables and
chemical agents consumed, strengthened
the management of fees, and encouraged
the project companies to take actions to
reduce costs and enhance efficiencies. 2. By
fully leveraging the advantages of economies
of scale and flexibility from group-wide and
regional procurement, the Company tackled
price fluctuations of raw materials by such
means as changing the factor formula with
agreed unit price. Besides, the Company
increased the number of qualified suppliers
introduced to fully explore the cooperation
relationship with long-term suppliers from
different sectors with an aim to effectively
reduce its procurement costs. 3. With the use
of informatization, the Company continued to
carry out in-depth benchmarking of operation
and management, and promoted standardized
management to identify essential problems
through production and operation data, thereby
achieving the goal of cost reduction and
consumption reduction.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
(continued)

8.

Construction project management risk
Currently, the Group has a relatively
large number of projects. Meanwhile, the
construction industry involves higher inherent
risks relating to safety issues, and the improper
performance of duties by the relevant personnel
of construction companies and supervisory
bodies will result in greater challenges for
ensuring construction safety and quality.

Responsive measures: 1. The Company
has advanced the development of project
information management system and
conducted analysis on the construction
schedule data and hence formed a database
for construction schedules, based on which
the Company may formulate standardised
construction schedule based on different types
of business and project scales. 2. Through the
comprehensive tracking of each construction
project’s progress, the Company recorded the
completion of milestones and the progress
of obtaining relevant licenses and permits
on a real-time basis. Regarding the delayed
projects, the Company timely organised
special meetings to analyse the problems and
adopted targeted measures. For problems and
difficulties in relation to quality management
encountered during the construction
process, the Company has organized special
discussion and exercised supervision and
management. 3. The Company continued
to conduct special inspections and random
inspections in respect of safety, environment
and quality of the construction projects,
which fully covered various aspects, such as
inspection of important working procedures,
safety and technical disclosures and review of
construction plans, etc.
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ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
MANAGEMENT

The Group pays close attention to its operational
impacts brought to the environment and
society. After years of development, the Group
has established a comprehensive safety and
environmental management system. In the first half
of 2023, the Group continued to implement relevant
management policies, covering structure and
responsibilities, accident management, flood control,
risk classification, hidden danger investigation, safety
and environment training, information reporting,
rating of the safety and environmental management
levels of the operating projects and construction
projects, fire safety management, related parties’
management, occupational health, public opening,
etc.

The Group implements all staff safety production
responsibility system and clarifies the safety
production and environmental management
responsibilities and assessment standards. The
person in charge of the various levels of units of the
project companies is the key person responsible for
the safety and environmental management of the
respective units and is fully responsible for the safety
production and environmental management of the
respective units. The Group and the business sectors
have formulated the annual safety and environmental
management target responsibility statement every
year, clarifying the annual target, key tasks and
assessment methods.

The Board and senior management review
sustainability strategies of the Group on a regular
basis, and revise the strategies when appropriate.
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ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

The Group’s waste-to-energy projects are designed
and operated fully in compliance with the applicable
national environmental requirements and standards
including but not limited to the Standard for Pollution
Control on the Municipal Solid Waste Incineration
(GB18485-2014), the relevant local standards,
as well as other requirements as set forth in the
environmental impact assessment reports approved
by the local government, while the daily average
values of online flue gas continuously monitored
parameters are well below the respective emissions
limits as stipulated under the European Union
Industrial Emissions Directive (2010/75/EU) and its
relevant annexes and amendments. Moreover, all of
the Group’s biomass combustion operations meet
the Emission Standard of Air Pollutants for Thermal
Power Plants (GB13223- 2011), the relevant local
standards, as well as other requirements as set forth
in the environmental impact assessment reports
approved by the local government.

The Group continued proactively and timely
disclosing emissions data and environmental
management information of its projects on Everbright
Environment’s corporate website, including the
connection to the automatic monitoring data
information disclosure platform of the Ministry of
Ecology and Environment of the People’s Republic of
China at https://ligk.envsc.cn/index.html in respect of
the daily average values of the 5 indicators of flue gas
and furnace temperature data from the operation of
waste-to-energy projects of Everbright Environment.
The Group was also devoted to improving the
information sharing platforms to facilitate the
management to monitor the operational condition
to ensure compliant operation, and to timely report
the operating performance of the projects to the
stakeholders of the Group.

China Everbright Environment Group Limited
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Disclosure of Interests
BEEREY

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 30 June 2023, the interests and short positions
of the Directors and the Company’s chief executives
and their respective associates in shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company and/or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFQ”)) as recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of
the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of the Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) were as follows:
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES (continued)

Long position in shares of Everbright Greentech,
a listed subsidiary of the Company

REE RIRE (RE)ERAF

HERBEHTRABERD -
FRRIIRR B 5 e 2 Ml s
RoAR (%)

RAEQXF 2 LHHBERRRARRE
BRROZHR

Approximate

Number of  percentage of

shares held total issued

(ordinary shares) shares

Nature of BEZ HEBET

Name of Director Capacity interest W R B

BEif 4] BmtE (EER) B

Hu Yanguo Beneficial Owner Personal 287,000 0.01%
TR BRERA AA

Qian Xiaodong Beneficial Owner Personal 242,000 0.01%
BBER BREBA faA

Fan Yan Hok, Philip Beneficial Owner Personal 100,494 Below 0.01%

BB EEEAA fEA 1ER0.01%

Note: Based on 2,066,078,000 shares of Everbright Greentech
in issue as at 30 June 2023.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2023, none
of the Directors and chief executives of the Company
and their respective associates had interests or
short positions in shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company, or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO), as recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company under section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the period under review was
the Company or any of its subsidiaries, holding
companies or fellow subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in,
or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 30 June 2023, the following persons (other than
any Directors or chief executives of the Company)
were substantial Shareholders and had interests or
short positions in shares or underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO,
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange:
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Gentral Huijin Investment Ltd.  Interest of controlled ~ Corporate interest ~ 2,646,233,137 43.08%
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HRESREBREMAAT REFI AR R
([E4 |) e
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES (continued)

Notes:

™

Based on 6,142,975,292 shares of the Company in issue
as at 30 June 2023.

Huijin is indirectly wholly-owned by the State Council of
the People’s Republic of China and holds 63.16% equity
interests of China Everbright Group. It is deemed to be
interested in the 2,646,233,137 shares of the Company
indirectly held by China Everbright Group.

China Everbright Group, through its direct wholly-
owned subsidiary, China Everbright Holdings Company
Limited (“CE Hong Kong”), indirectly and wholly owns
Guildford Limited (“Guildford”) and Everbright Investment
& Management Limited (“EIM”), respectively. Guildford
directly holds 2,430,442,287 shares of the Company and
EIM directly holds 215,790,850 shares of the Company.
Accordingly, China Everbright Group is deemed to be
interested in the 2,646,233,137 shares of the Company
directly held by Guildford and EIM in total.

Pacific Asset Management Co., Ltd invested the shares
of the Company as manager for and on behalf of China
Pacific Insurance (Group) Co., Ltd., China Pacific Life
Insurance Co., Ltd., China Pacific Property Insurance
Co., Ltd., China Pacific Health Insurance Co., Ltd., and
some portfolio insurance asset management products.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES (continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2023, the
Company had not been notified of any other persons
(other than the Directors or chief executives of the
Company or substantial Shareholders) who had
interests or short positions in shares or underlying
shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under section
336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME
The Group has no share option scheme during the
period under review.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE CG CODE

The Group upholds the management principle
of “People-oriented, Pragmatism, Creativity and
Systematic Management”. The Board firmly believes
that high-quality, comprehensive and high-level
corporate governance is the cornerstone of the
Group, which can create long-term value for the
Group and is vital to the sustainable development
of the Group. It can also safeguard the interests
of the Shareholders and other stakeholders of the
Company, including but not limited to customers,
suppliers, employees and the general public. The
Board and the management strive to maintain high-
level corporate governance standards, and continue
to strengthen corporate governance, internal control
and risk management systems through a series of
rules, regulations and policies, and actively improve
transparency and accountability. The Company
strictly complies with the laws and regulations of
the places where it operates, and complies with
the applicable guidelines and rules issued by the
regulatory authorities.

The Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”)
set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules has been
duly adopted by the Board as the code on corporate
governance practices of the Company.

The Company complied with all Code Provisions
as set out in the CG Code throughout the six
months ended 30 June 2023. The Company will
continue to commit to enhancing its corporate
governance appropriate to the conduct and growth
of its business, and to continuously reviewing,
monitoring and assessing from time to time its
corporate governance practices to ensure the same
comply with the CG Code and align with the latest
developments.

The details of the Company’s corporate governance
practices are set out in 2022 annual report of the
Company published in April 2023.
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THE BOARD

The Board currently comprises 5 executive Directors
and 4 independent non-executive Directors
(“INED(s)”). The number of INEDs represents
not less than one-third of the Board as required
under the Listing Rules, one of whom possesses
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
or related financial management expertise. INEDs
provide the Group with diversified experience and
professionalism. Their advice and views as well as
participation in the Board and Board committee
meetings bring independent views, advice and
judgements on issues relating to the strategy and
development of the Group, business operation and
performance, risk control, internal controls and
conflict of interests, etc., to ensure the Shareholders’
interests are taken into consideration.

BOARD COMMITTEES

Currently, the Board has established 5 Board
committees namely the Audit Committee (the “Audit
Committee”), Risk Management Committee (the “Risk
Management Committee”), Nomination Committee
(the “Nomination Committee”), Remuneration
Committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) and
Disclosure Committee (the “Disclosure Committee”),
with specific written terms of reference which deal
clearly with their respective authorities and duties:

1. Audit Committee

The Audit Committee currently comprises
3 INEDs, namely Ms. Li Shuk Yin, Edwina
(chairman), Mr. Fan Yan Hok, Philip and
Mr. Zhai Haitao. Its primary responsibilities
include but not limited to review the Group’s
financial reporting process, risk management
and internal control systems, internal and
external audit and other financial and
accounting matters of the Group, and to
oversee the relationship between the Company
and Ernst & Young (“EY”), the external auditor
of the Company, etc. The terms of reference
of the Audit Committee have been established
in writing and are available on the websites of
the Company and Hong Kong Exchanges and
Clearing Limited (“HKEX”).
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

2.

Risk Management Committee

The Risk Management Committee currently
comprises 3 INEDs, namely Mr. Fan Yan Hok,
Philip (chairman), Mr. Suo Xuquan and Ms.
Li Shuk Yin, Edwina, Mr. Luan Zusheng, the
Executive Director and the Chief Executive
Officer, Mr. An Xuesong, the Executive
Director, the Vice President and the Chief
Financial Officer, and Ms. Li Chunju, the Vice
President. Its primary responsibilities include
but not limited to provide oversight of the
Company’s risk management programs, and to
review the effectiveness of the management’s
processes for identifying, assessing, mitigating
and monitoring enterprise-wide risks. The
terms of reference of the Risk Management
Committee have been established in writing.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee currently
comprises Mr. Huang Haiqing, the Executive
Director and the Chairman of the Board
(chairman), and all the 4 INEDs, namely
Mr. Fan Yan Hok, Philip, Mr. Zhai Haitao,
Mr. Suo Xuquan and Ms. Li Shuk Yin, Edwina.
Its primary responsibilities include but not
limited to review annually the structure,
size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board and
the time devoted by the Directors, to review
the Board diversity and the implementation
and effectiveness of the Board Diversity
Policy, and report/recommend to the Board,
to assess the independence of the INEDs,
to make recommendations to the Board on
the appointment or re-appointment or re-
designation of Directors by taking into account
the Board Diversity Policy and the Nomination
Policy, to make recommendations to the
Board on the appointment or re-appointment
of the senior management, and to assess
the qualifications and competencies of the
candidates, so as to ensure that all nominations
are fair and transparent. The terms of reference
of the Nomination Committee have been
established in writing and are available on the
websites of the Company and HKEX.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

4.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently
comprises Mr. Zhai Haitao, the INED
(chairman), Mr. Huang Haiging, the Executive
Director and the Chairman of the Board, and
3 other INEDs, namely Mr. Fan Yan Hok,
Philip, Mr. Suo Xuquan and Ms. Li Shuk Yin,
Edwina. Its primary responsibilities include
but not limited to determine, with delegated
responsibilities by the Board, the remuneration
packages of the individual Executive Directors
and senior management of the Company.
The terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee have been established in writing
and are available on the websites of the
Company and HKEX.

Disclosure Committee

The Disclosure Committee currently comprises
Mr. Luan Zusheng, the Executive Director and
the Chief Executive Officer (chairman), Mr. Hu
Yanguo, the Executive Director and the Vice
President, Mr. Qian Xiaodong, the Executive
Director and the Vice President, and Mr. An
Xuesong, the Executive Director, the Vice
President and the Chief Financial Officer, as
well as Ms. Poon Yuen Ling, the Company
Secretary. The Board has delegated the day-
to-day execution of its continuous disclosure
obligations to the Disclosure Committee to
ensure the compliance of the Company with its
disclosure obligations. The terms of reference
of the Disclosure Committee have been
established in writing.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Other than the 5 Board committees above, the
Company has established the Management Decision
Committee which is responsible for the day-to-
day administration, operation and management of
the business and affairs of the Group. According to
the authorization delegated by the Board and the
terms of reference of the Management Decision
Committee, the primary responsibilities of the
Management Decision Committee include but not
limited to review the Group’s major decisions, major
project arrangements, as well as the arrangements
of large capital amount, and to review and formulate
the Group’s development strategies and goals,
long term business development plans, directions,
policies and guidelines, etc. The Management
Decision Committee also takes charge of reviewing
the investment projects of the Group, after being
recommended by the Project Advisory Committee.
For project risk management and project
technological risk management, the Group has set
up the Project Advisory Committee to monitor and
assess risks regularly, boost related management
standards and evaluate investment projects as
well as assess the technologies used in different
investment projects. For project financial control,
the Group insists on stringent budget management,
and has set up a Construction Budget Management
Department that focuses on monitoring construction
budgets of the projects. In addition, the Group has
also set up Audit Department and Risk Management
and Legal Compliance Department to perform
internal audits, and risk management and control and
legal compliance functions respectively to bolster the
Group’s management standards.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Group has adopted the Model Code set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code
of conduct for Directors’ transactions in securities
of the Company. Having made specific enquiries to
the Directors, all Directors confirmed that they had
complied with the required standard of dealings as
set out in the Model Code throughout their tenure
during the six months ended 30 June 2023.
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CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS
Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the
changes in information of the Directors since the
Company’s last published 2022 annual report are as
follows:

Mr. Fan Yan Hok, Philip ceased to be an independent
non-executive director of China Aircraft Leasing
Group Holdings Limited (the shares of which are
listed on the Stock Exchange), with effect from 16
May 2023.

Ms. Li Shuk Yin, Edwina was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of CNOOC
Limited (the shares of which are listed on the Stock
Exchange and Shanghai Stock Exchange), with effect
from 31 May 2028.

Save as disclosed above, the Company is not aware
of other information which is required to be disclosed
under Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

INTERIM DIVIDEND

The Board has declared payment of an interim
dividend of HK14.0 cents per share (2022: HK15.0
cents per share) for the six months ended 30 June
2023, payable to the Shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company
(the “Register of Members”) on Friday, 29 September
20283. The interim dividend will be paid to the
Shareholders on Friday, 20 October 2023.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of ascertaining the Shareholders’
entitlement to the interim dividend, the Register
of Members will be closed from Wednesday, 27
September 2023 to Friday, 29 September 2023,
both days inclusive, during which period no transfer
of shares will be registered. Shareholders, whose
names appear on the Register of Members on the
record date, i.e. Friday, 29 September 2023, will be
entitled to the interim dividend. In order to qualify for
the interim dividend, all transfer forms accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the Company’s share registrar and transfer
office, Tricor Tengis Limited at 17/F, Far East Finance
Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong no later than
4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 26 September 2023.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the six months ended 30 June 2023,
neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the listed
securities of the Company.

REVIEW OF INTERIM FINANCIAL RESULTS
The Audit Committee has reviewed the interim
financial results of the Company for the six months
ended 30 June 2023 for the Board’s approval.

Hong Kong, 29 August 2023
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Interim Financial Report
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
For the six months ended 30 June 2023
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For the six months ended 30 June

BEAAZTHLEARA

2023 2022
—E-cE —E-CF
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REE%)
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
MizE BRI BETT
REVENUE Wiz 3 16,297,167 21,448,683
Direct costs and operating expenses ERNARGEER (9,103,734) (13,819,872)
Gross profit E7 7,193,433 7,628,811
Other revenue Hilzs 542,504 594,138
Other income and gains/(losses), net ERA RS/
(BR)FE (203,372) (700,501)
Administrative expenses THER (1,340,565) (1,605,785)
PROFIT FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES ~ & & ZE1f5 27 6,192,000 5,916,663
Finance costs KER 5 (1,739,255) (1,684,504)
Share of profits of joint ventures FERELERF 47,000 61,575
Share of profits of associates Fribs e AR B F 5,904 32,358
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BRHRIAN 4 4,505,649 4,326,092
Income tax i 6 (1,114,018) (983,339)
PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD AERE AT 3,391,631 3,342,753
ATTRIBUTABLE TO: SR -
Equity holders of the Company RRAEEREA 2,784,923 2,811,148
Holders of perpetual capital instruments ~ KEE KT AHEA 110,013 16,255
Non-controlling interests FERER 496,695 515,350
3,391,631 3,342,753
EARNINGS PER SHARE LYNSIE Sy N
ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS FREF
OF THE COMPANY 8
- Basic and diluted -ERREE HK45.34 centsfl  HK45.76 centsiil




80 China Everbright Environment Group Limited
REEARE (RE)BRAF

Interim Financial Report & 281 3% R &

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF meEZTHEEBERER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the six months ended 30 June 2023 BE_ZE-_=F,A=1HIXAA

For the six months ended 30 June
BZAB=TRLAEA

2023 2022
—g-cE —E-CF
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REE%)
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETRL BETT
PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD REREF 3,391,631 3,342,753
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) E2ERA/ (BE)
Other comprehensive incomey/(loss) that may be REBSHTS i%ﬁ"* T "RL
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods: ~ Htr2EUA /(&
Exchange differences: EREE
Exchange differences on translation of AERNEBELVERER
foreign operations (1,396,660) (4,010,470)
Debt instruments at fair value through other BALEFAEGEZERAZ
comprehensive income: BHIL:
Changes in fair value AMEZE (89,506) 16,972
Net other comprehensive loss that may be reclassified 7 & /4 B A4 B HEZBH R 7
to profit or loss in subsequent periods Et2EERTE (1,486,166) (3,993,498)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS TEREMZAEE
FOR THE PERIOD, NET OF TAX (BNBHE) (1,486,166) (3,993,498)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) TEf2ERN/ (BR)EE
FOR THE PERIOD 1,905,465 (650,745)
ATTRIBUTABLE TO: i E
Equity holders of the Company Zl‘ T*’éﬁn%“ﬁ)\ 1,580,722 (509,511)
Holders of perpetual capital instruments KEERTEBEA 110,013 16,255
Non-controling interests JFERER 214,730 (157,489)

1,905,465 (650,745
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT & BRI 2
OF FINANCIAL POSITION
30 June 2023 —E-=%,xA=+H
30 June 31 December
2023 2022
—EC-=H —2-C
AA=+H +ZA=+-H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (&%)
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
BitzE BETT BB
NON-CURRENT ASSETS SREEE
Investment properties REME 164,516 168,581
Property, plant and equipment ME - BERR 9,072,785 8,943,821
Right-of-use assets FRBEEE 887,876 907,321
10,125,177 10,019,723
Goodwill RS 1,537,219 1,561,486
Intangible assets EVEE 30,933,112 30,794,582
Interests in joint ventures AEDERS 1,011,642 965,932
Interests in associates il NSl £ 588,061 592,922
Contract assets BHEE 9 95,478,520 96,984,420
Finance lease receivables BMEHE R IE 12,794 13,367
Other financial assets Hi B 54 178,784 197,546
Other receivables, deposits EmElkZE ke Rk
and prepayments ]"EH,TAIE 10 2,862,744 3,105,883
Deferred tax assets ERERIEEE 380,052 376,031
Total non-current assets ERBEELE 143,108,105 144,611,892
CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories 1,089,752 1,014,432
Contract assets AWERE 9 13,312,444 12,445,930
Finance lease receivables & ﬁ%ﬁ‘*ﬁlﬂz 757 770
Other financial assets HAi B 75 ﬁ)_i; 209,889 221,717
Debtors, other receivables, FEUTBR R ~ Efh e U FIE
deposits and prepayments R RENZE 10 22,827,985 20,476,261
Tax recoverable AW EFIE 3,686 44,053
Pledged bank deposits BEARITER 11 301,887 1,163,850
Deposits with banks with maturity  F BB ={{4 2
period over three months RITER 1 33,741 27,651
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEEED 12 8,534,904 10,591,242
Total current assets MBEELR 46,315,045 45,985,906
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT e BSAR R (&)
OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

30 June 2023 T _=9¢,xA=+H
30 June 31 December
2023 2022
—E-=E —EC-CF
~A=tE +ZA=+—8H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REBER) (&&Z)
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt zE BET T BT
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEBE
Creditors, other payables and FERTBRTN « EhEMFIAR
accrued expenses BT ER 13 18,570,061 22,437,850
Interest-bearing borrowings HEEE
- Secured — B 3,847,213 3,742,461
- Unsecured —ER A 17,868,213 16,435,727
21,715,426 20,178,188
Tex payable EfIHE 419,524 197,011
Total current liabilities MEEEAE 40,705,011 42,813,049
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEFHE 5,610,034 3,172,857

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT @A EREI&E
LIABILITIES 148,718,139 147,784,749
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT

OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

30 June 2023

83

fRE MBI R ()

ZE=HXA=TH

30 June 31 December
2023 2022
—BC-cE —T--F
~A=tH +ZA=t+—H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (&&%)
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
BitzE BETT BB
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBas
Other payables H AR R 13 868,992 533,657
Interest-bearing borrowings HEEE
- Secured -BEHE 37,749,200 39,663,880
- Unsecured — &I 33,895,608 34,882,432
71,644,808 74,546,312
Deferred tax liabilities EEREEE 10,263,605 10,105,887
Total non-current liabilities FnEaERE 82,777,405 85,185,856
NET ASSETS BEFE 65,940,734 62,598,893
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to equity ANAERFE AEGER
holders of the Company
Share capital AR 14 17,329,537 17,329,537
Reserves i 31,069,452 30,044,571
48,398,989 47,374,108
Non-controlling interests Parie o 11,823,128 11,769,351
Perpetual capital instruments KEERTE 5,718,617 3,455,434
TOTAL EQUITY EREE 65,940,734 62,598,893
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China Everbright Environment Group Limited

REEARE (RE)BRAF

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FEEREER
CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the six months ended 30 June 2023 HE-_ZT-_=F-A=1+HI~EA
Goodwil Property
arising on revaluation
Share consolidation reserve
capital GAER EEA
i EE EE Gl
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(7427 (7427 (7427)
Note HKS'000 HKS'000 HK'000
s e e BT
At 1 January 2023 RoEZ=E-F- 17,329,537 (986) 90,512
Proft for the period 'Wﬂ = = =
Other compreensive loss for the period: BRAbRERE:
Changes In air value of debt instruments RAREHAEHZEUAL
atfair value through other comprehensive EEIA L1 ERD
income, net of tax (EARHE) = = =
Exchange differences on translation of BERNEREEZELER
foreign operations = = =
Total comprehensive incomeloss) for the period ~ BBRAEMA /(Big )8 = = =
Issuance of perpetual capital instruments BTKEERIE = = =
Dividend approved n respect of the previous year R EFEEZRE 7 - - -
Capital contributions received by non FRENBLAREERERED
wholly-owned subsiciaries from FECLER
non-controling shareholders = = =
Acquisition of non-controling interests in subsiciaries ~ WEHEL 13H“ Ea - = =
Dividend declared to non-controling BRHBAFEERREER,
shareholders of subsidiaries ke = = =
Distributions payable to holders of perpetual B AEERTARAAZATR
capital instruments = =
A 30 June 2023 i St g 17,320,837 (986)" 903512
*  These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated * ZEHEBHREERN_Z_=ZF<
reserves of HK$31,069,452,000 (31 December 2022: A=THzZEaMBRRAKRMT
HK$30,044,571,000) in the consolidated statement of 4R A f# 8 15 31,069,452,000 7T
financial position as at 30 June 2023. (T —F+_A=+—H:}
#30,044,571,0007T) °
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Attributable to equity holders of the Company

FARREREARE
Other financial
assets and debt
instruments
measured
at fair value
through other
comprehensive
income reserve
BOAERA
Afp2EHA Non- Perpetual
Exchange HEZEM Other Reserve Retained controling capital Total
fesene BBEER 18SEIVes ~fund profits Total inerests ~ instruments equity
EifE EEIAGE Efpéi e REEH 88 FihEE  ABERIA BaEE
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(xgzn)  (RE3R)  (REEn) (B8R (kE8n)  (REER)  (REER)  (REER)  (REER)
HOOD HEDD  HGON HGID RGO HSID  HEND  HGOD KT
EBTTL BETT R8T EETTL EETT R8T EETTL A8 ABTT
(3,957,127) (57,994) 3,295,127 3,553,505 27,121,534 47,374,108 11,769,351 3,455,434 62,598,893
- - - - 2,784,923 2,784,923 496,695 110,013 3,391,631
- (62,083) - - - (62,083) (27,423) - (89,506)
(1,142,118) g S - - (1142118 (254,542) - (1,396,660)
(1,142,118 (62,083) - - 2,784,923 1,580,722 214,730 110,013 1,005,465
- - - - - - - 2,253,179 2,253,179
- - - - (552,868) (552,868) - - (552,868)
- - - - - - 16,045 - 16,045
- - (2973 - - (2973 (19,613) - (22,586)
- - - - - - (157,385) - (157,385)
- - - - - - - (100,009) (100,009)
(5,099,245)* (120,077)* 3,292,154* 3,953,505* 20,353,580 48,398,989 11,823,128 5,718,617 65,940,734
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF TmaEmEERE)
CHANGES IN EQUITY (continued)
For the six months ended 30 June 2023 BE-_Z_=FA=tHIt~EAR
Goodwil Property
arising on revaluation
Share consohdat\on reserve
capltal ke pEE
i EECEE ]
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(R&E5H) (R&EEH) (REEH)
Note HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
Izt BBTTL ABTTL BBTTL
At January 2022 H-F--E-F-F 17,309,597 (986) 90,512
Profit for the period AR - - -
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the period: ~ BMERZEN N/ (BE) :
Changes i fai value of debt instruments RAREHAEHEENAL
at fair value through other comprehensive BEIEZDAERD
income, net of tax (BHIRHE) - - -
Exchange differences on translation of nEENEREEZERER
foreign operations - - -

Total comprehensive income/{oss) for the period ~~ BR2 AN/ (BiE) 48 - - -

Issuance of perpetual capital instruments BNEERIA - - -
Dividend approved in respect of the previous year B EEEEZRE 7 - - -
Capital contributions received by non F2ENBRANEERRR

wholly-owned subsidiaries from Y HEE

non-controling shareholders - - -
Acquisition of non-controling interests WENBLARERER

in subsidlaries - - -
Dividend declared to non-controling EHWE AEERRREE R

shareholders of subsidlaries - - -

At 30 June 2022 RZEZZERA=1H 17,329,537 (%86) 90,512
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Attributable to equity holders of the Company
KATERRAARE
Other financal
assets and debt
instruments
measured
at fair value
through other
comprehensive
income reserve
BAREA
Efp2EKA Non- Perpetual
Exchenge HEZEM Other Reserve Retained controling capital Total
16S81Ve BBRER resenves fund profits Tota inerests instruments equity
EifE BEIAGE Efbih e BAf B8 FPRER  XBEAIR ERAE
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(7427 (7227 (7427) (7427 (7227) (7427) (7427 (7227) (7427)
HK$‘00_0 HK$’00_O !-IK$’OO_0 HK$’00_0 HK$’00_O !-IK$’OO_0 HK$’00_0 HK$’00_0 HK$’O()_()
ELTTL BRI AETTL LA BRI AETTL 8T BRI AETTL
3,246,418 (99,113) 3,295,127 2,861,250 25,064,742 51,777,487 12,564,735 - 64,342,002
- - - - 2,811,148 2,811,148 515,350 16,28 3,342,758
- 10,549 - - - 10,549 6,423 - 16,972
(3,331,208) - - - - (3,331,208) (679,262) - (4,010,470)
(3,331,208) 10,549 - - 2,811,148 (509,511) (167,489) 16,255 (650,745)
- - - - - - - 3,455,434 3,456,434
- - - - (921,44) (921,446) - - (921,446)
- - - - - - 58,939 - 58,939
550 - - - - 550 (6,767) - (6,217)
- - - - - - (204,581) - (204,581)
(84,240) (88,564) 3,295,127 2,861,250 26,944,444 50,347,080 12,054,837 3471,689 66,073,606
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS
For the six months ended 30 June 2023 BE-_Z_=FA=tHIt~EAR

For the six months ended 30 June
BERA=TRIEAER

2028 2022
gk —E-CF
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEEHK) (Ra7)
Notes HK$'000 HK§'000
(i BRI BETT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTMVITIES B2 E8)f713
Profit before tax SR 4,505,649 4,326,092
Adjustments for: L
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment — #91% - BE RRENE 4 335,137 324,572
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FPREAENE 4 37,035 34,941
Amortisation of intangible assets B EEEY 4 759,412 677,685
Finance costs SBER 5 1,739,255 1,684,504
Dividend income BREMA 4 (857) -
Interest income LN 4 (64,855) (79,361)
Share of profits of joint ventures AR ErERT (47,000) (61,575)
Share of profits of associates B E AR R (5,904) (32,358)
Fair value losses/(gains), net: NhEEE/ (W) 58
Other financial assets EMyKEE
- unlisted equity investment ~F I mRARE 4 2,098 (318)
Other financial assets EtyKEE
- unlisted investments o AN 4 22,659 11,396
Impairment of debtors EUEFE 4 186,245 219,946
Impairment/{write-back of impairment) of Ll ERE/
other receivables, net (FEER)F 4 (2,768) 71,306
Impairment/(write-back of impairment) of ANEERE/
contract assets, net (FlEER) 58 4 (1,270) 6,833
Impairment of goodwill BERE 4 - 376,705
Impairment of intangible assets BVEERE 4 - 14,699
Loss on disposal and write-off of property, HERMENE  BER
plant and equipment, net HE BESE 308 82
Effect of foreign exchange rates changes, net ~ EXEE), /228 (670,793) (200,600)
6,894,351 7,374,549
Decrease/(increase) in inventories BERD/ (5 (91,298) 193,193
Increase in contract assets ANEELEN (1,082,965) (4,491,468)
Increase in debtors, other receivables, RS - H SR -
deposits and prepayments ke RBATEEN (2,764,547) (2,004,733)
Decrease in creditors, other BN AERTER
payables and accrued expenses B BRI (2,946,329) (1,588,372)
Cash generated from/(used in) operations TEEE /(9E) B4 9,212 (516,831)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF mEBRERERAE)
CASH FLOWS (continued)
For the six months ended 30 June 2023 BE-_E-_=F,A=tHI~EA

For the six months ended 30 June
BERA=TRLEAER

2023 2022
—B-=k S
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEEH) (Razg)
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
i3 BETRL BETT
Interest received 64,855 79,361
People’s Republic of China (‘PRC") and
overseas income taxes paid (236,374) (497 461)
Net cash flows used in operating activities
(162,307) (934,931)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES ~ B2 EBIFTER L
Dividend received BHES 857 -
Purchase of items of property, BENE BELRE
plant and equipment (535,195) (446,930)
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, — HENE « BERREHR
plant and equipment B 3,855 33,259
Principal portion of lease payments %“EE 5 xs8H (5,135) (11,365)
Additions of intangible assets BEEYVEE (1,554,036) (2,609,051)
Capital contributions to joint ventures TERERE (472) (85,988)
Capital contribution to an associate TERENE (760) (36,968)
Decrease/(increase) in amounts due from an J@W#%"/} AFERD/
associate 20) 4,057 (202)
Increase in non-current portion of prepayments i‘ﬁﬁ mlﬁiFm HEPHEm - (4,656)
Repayment from finance lease receivables ~ BAMEENZIEEN 363 365
Purchase of other financial assets BEHMMKEE - (102,008)
Increase in deposits with banks I m%ﬁﬁ’ﬂ BRZBIER
with maturity period over three months )| (6,526) (56,694)

il

Net cash flows used in investing activities

(2,092,992) (3,320,238)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF mERERERAE)
CASH FLOWS (continued)
For the six months ended 30 June 2023 BE-_S_=F,A=1tHIt~NER

For the six months ended 30 June
BEAB=TRLAEA

2023 2022
“BoZE e St
(Unaud|ted) (Unaudited)
(REEHK) (REzn)
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
fitr BRI BRI
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES ~ B1&/ZEIFEE SR
Proceeds from issue of perpetual capital BTKBARTAMBHE
instruments 2,253,179 3,455,434
Proceeds from issue of medium-term BURRZE(( 82 ))
notes (‘MTN’), and super and short-term REHRAS([ERE
commercial papers (“SCP”), net of related BE5 | FiERE(ENR
expenses paid BRERS) 5,710,875 3,931,441
Repayment of MTN, asset-backed securities ~ (EER AR - ET HE5
(*ABS") and SCP ([BExnEs R
BERRES (2,237,449) (1,189,576)
New bank and other loans HRRTRANER 15,731,661 18,418,642
Repayment of bank and other loans BEBTRERER (19,287,769) (12,895,369)
Capital contributions received by non wholly-  JE2 EMB A Al IHERAER
owned subsidiaries from non-controlling BHG HEE
shargholders 16,045 58,939
Acquisition of non-controlling interests WER SE AR (22,586) (6,217)
Increase/(decrease) in amounts dug tonon-  [ERHB A AEARRE IR
controlling shareholders of subsidiaries B0,/ (6) (150) 956
Decrease/(increase) in pledged bank deposits ~ 2EARTRZAS /(1) 843,631 (46,211)
Interest paid BIfE (1,811,410) (1,731,849)
Interest portion of lease payments BERTZHSHH (2,963) (2,683)
Principal portion of lease payments RERTZALEH (21,286) (24,964)
Dividend paid to equity holders of the Company ERARFEREEAZRE (552,868) (921,446)
Dividend paid to non-controlling shareholders 2B A AIFEERRE 2
of subsidiaries &E (157,385) (204,581)
Distribution to holders of perpetual capital FAKEERTEREAZDR
instruments (155,263) -
Net cash flows from financing activities 356,262 3,842,620
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH ReRAESEMALFE
EQUIVALENTS (1,899,097) (412,549)
Cash and cash equivalents at BRe LA ZED
beginning of period 10,591,242 16,046,943
Effect of foreign exchange rates changes, net ~ EXZE & (157,301) (560,055)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS BRES LB EEY
AT END OF PERIOD 12 8,534,904 14,074,339
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e I RAR MR

NOTES TO UNAUDITED INTERIM FINANCIAL
INFORMATION
For the six months ended 30 June 2023

1.1 CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
China Everbright Environment Group Limited
(the “Company”) is a limited liability company
incorporated in Hong Kong. The registered office
of the Company is located at Room 2703, 27th
Floor, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt
Road, Hong Kong.

During the six months ended 30 June 2023,
the principal activities of the Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) are construction, environmental energy
project operation (waste-to-energy plants, food
and kitchen waste treatment projects, sludge
treatment and disposal projects, leachate
treatment projects, methane-to-energy plants,
fecal treatment project, fly ash landfill projects,
medical waste treatment projects and solid
waste treatment projects, and provision of waste
sorting, renewable resources utilisation and
sanitation operation services), environmental
water project operation (waste water treatment
plants, water supply, reusable water treatment
plants, sludge treatment and disposal projects,
sponge city construction, river-basin ecological
restoration, waste water source heat pump
projects, leachate treatment, research and
development of water environment technologies
and engineering projects), greentech project
operation (integrated biomass utilisation
projects, hazardous and solid waste treatment
projects, solar energy projects and wind
power projects, and provision of environmental
remediation services), conduct of environmental
protection technology research and development,
provision of environmental-related technological
services, design of environmental protection
projects, provision of environmental protection
project equipment construction and installation
services and sales of related equipment, sales of
energy-saving street lamps, energy management
contract projects, and investment holding.
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China Everbright Environment Group Limited

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & 81 iR R M5t

1.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The unaudited interim financial information
for the six months ended 30 June 2023 has
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Accounting Standard (“HKAS”) 34 “Interim
Financial Reporting” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA”) and the applicable disclosure
requirements of Appendix 16 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

The accounting policies and basis of preparation
adopted in the preparation of the unaudited
interim financial information are consistent with
those adopted in the annual financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2022 except
for the adoption of the new and revised Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the HKICPA, which became effective
for the first time for the current period’s financial
information, as further detailed in note 1.3 below.
The unaudited interim financial information is
presented in Hong Kong dollars and all values
are rounded to the nearest thousand except
when otherwise indicated.

The financial information contains condensed
consolidated financial statements and selected
explanatory notes. The notes include an
explanation of events and transactions that are
significant to an understanding of the changes in
financial position and performance of the Group
since the 2022 annual financial statements.
The condensed consolidated interim financial
information does not include all the information
and disclosures required in the annual financial
statements, and should be read in conjunction
with the Group’s annual consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December
2022.
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1.2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

The financial information relating to the year
ended 31 December 2022 that is included in
this unaudited interim financial information as
comparative information does not constitute
the Company’s statutory annual consolidated
financial statements for that year but is
derived from those financial statements.
Further information relating to those statutory
financial statements required to be disclosed in
accordance with section 436 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance is as follows:

The Company has delivered the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December
2022 to the Registrar of Companies as required
by section 662(3) of, and Part 3 of Schedule 6 to,
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The Company’s auditor has reported on the
financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2022. The auditor’s report was
unqualified; did not include a reference to any
matters to which the auditor drew attention
by way of emphasis without qualifying its
report; and did not contain a statement under
sections 406(2), 407(2) or (3) of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.
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1.3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1.8 ETERE &) & H# 55

AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and
revised HKFRSs for the first time for the current
period’s unaudited interim financial information:

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

Amendments to HKFRS 17  Insurance Contracts

Amendment to HKFRS 17 Initial Application of HKFRS
17 and HKFRS 9 -
Comparative Information

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting
and HKFRS Practice Policies
Statement 2
Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting
Estimates
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to
Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single
Transaction
Amendments to HKAS 12 International Tax Reform —
Pillar Two Model Rules

The adoption of the above new and revised
HKFRSs had no significant effect on the results
and financial position for the current or prior
accounting periods which have been prepared
and presented.

The Group has not early adopted any standard,
interpretation or amendment that has been
issued but not yet effective.
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2. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
The Group manages its business by divisions,
which are organised by business lines. In
a manner consistent with the way in which
information is reported internally to the
Group’s most senior executive management
for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment, the Group has
presented four reportable segments.

— Environmental energy project construction
and operation: this segment engages in
the construction and operation of waste-
to-energy plants, food and kitchen waste
treatment projects, sludge treatment and
disposal projects, leachate treatment
projects, methane-to-energy plants, fecal
treatment projects, fly ash landfill projects,
medical waste treatment projects and solid
waste treatment projects, and provision
of waste sorting, renewable resources
utilisation, and sanitation operation services,
to generate revenue from construction
services, revenue from operation services as
well as finance income.

—  Environmental water project construction
and operation: this segment engages in
the construction, upgrade and operation of
waste water treatment plants, water supply,
reusable water treatment plants, sludge
treatment and disposal projects, sponge
city construction, river-basin ecological
restoration, waste water source heat pump
projects, leachate treatment, research
and development of water environment
technologies and engineering projects,
to generate revenue from construction
services, revenue from operation services as
well as finance income.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & 81 iR R M5t

2.

China Everbright Environment Group Limited

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

- Greentech project construction and
operation: this segment engages in the
construction and operation of integrated
biomass utilisation projects, hazardous
and solid waste treatment projects,
solar energy projects and wind power
projects, and provision of environmental
remediation services, to generate revenue
from construction services, revenue from
operation services as well as finance
income.

— Others: this segment engages in the
conduct of environmental protection
technology research and development,
provision of environmental-related
technological services, design of
environmental protection projects, provision
of environmental protection project
equipment construction and installation
services and sales of related equipment,
sales of energy-saving street lamps, and
energy management contract projects from
which it generates revenue.

For the purpose of assessing segment
performance and allocating resource between
segments, the Group’s senior executive
management monitors the results, assets and
liabilities attributable to each reportable segment
on the following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible assets,
intangible assets, goodwill, interests in
associates and joint ventures, investments
in other financial assets, tax recoverable,
deferred tax assets and current assets with the
exception of intercompany receivables and other
corporate assets. Segment liabilities include tax
payable, deferred tax liabilities, creditors, other
payables and accrued expenses attributable
to the activities of the individual segment and
borrowings managed directly by the segments,
with the exception of intercompany payables and
other corporate liabilities.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the
reportable segments with reference to revenue
generated by those segments and the expenses
incurred by those segments or which otherwise
arise from the depreciation or amortisation of
assets attributable to those segments. However,
other than reporting inter-segment sales of
equipment and provision of technological
services, assistance provided by one segment
to another, including technical know-how, is not
measured.

The measure used for reporting segment profit
is “earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation
and amortisation” (“Adjusted EBITDA”). To
arrive at Adjusted EBITDA, the Group’s earnings
are further adjusted for items not specifically
attributed to the individual segment, such as
directors’ and auditor’s remuneration and other
head office or corporate administration costs.

In addition to receiving segment information
concerning segment results, management is
provided with segment information concerning
revenue (including inter-segment sales
and revenue from technological services),
depreciation and amortisation and additions
to non-current segment assets used by the
segments in their operations.

The Group redefined its business segments to
align its organisation structure for the purpose
of managing its strategic decision. Certain
financial information previously included in
“Others” segment have been reclassified to
the “Environmental energy project construction
and operation” segment. Accordingly, the
comparative segment information has been
reclassified to conform with the current period’s
presentation.
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China Everbright Environment Group Limited

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements %R & Bt i R &K M =E

2.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

I

(continued)

(i)

Information about profit or loss, assets (i)
and liabilities

Information regarding the Group’s
reportable segments as provided to the

Group’s most senior executive management

for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance for the

period is set out below.

For the six months ended 30 June

‘= 7]

REEARE (RE)BRAF

2. BEDHWER(E)

B EERBEZEN
RAME  AEERE

R R BB R BT
mAAEESEEE
RUCATRED DA
BT e

BIENHA=1HIE A

Environmental energy
project construction
and operation

RRUREAREREE
2023 2022
“g-=f C—ZT-CF
(Unaudited)  (Unaudited)
(REER) (REER)
HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BETT
(Restated)
(g =51)
Segment revenue: 2ERE
Revenue from external customers RENREPYE 9,130,530 13,512,668
Inter-segment revenue A EkE 49,406 49,212
Reportable segment revenue BTRE 2 PR 9,179,936 13,561,880
Reconciliation: HE -
Elimination of inter-segment revenue sl ey

Reportable segment revenue derived from RERAEENRAEEZ
the Group’s external customers BETREABYE
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Environmental water Greentech
project construction project construction
and operation and operation Others Total
REKBERREREE BERRAABREREE Hif .t
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
ZEZ=fF  —ZT-C —g-=f —E--f CZB-=f C-E--f ZB-=fE <—ZT-CF
(Unaudited)  (Unaudited) (Unaudited)  (Unaudited) (Unaudited)  (Unaudited) (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)
(REEHR) (REER) (REBR) (REER)  (REER)  (RESKR)  (REER)  (REER)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BET T BETR BETT BETT  BE%Tn AT
(Restated)
(i E51)
3,082,000 3,478,939 3,818,651 4,219,870 265,986 237,206 16,297,167 21,448,683
- - 1,293 421 308,587 536,911 359,286 586,544
3,082,000 3,478,939 3,819,944 4,220,291 574,573 774,117 16,656,453 22,035,227
(359,286) (586,544)
16,297,167 21,448,683
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements %R & Bt i R &K M =E

2.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 2.
(continued)

(i)

For the six months ended 30 June

Information about profit or loss, assets
and liabilities (continued)

REEARE (RE)BRAF

REDEER ()

(i) #B= BEREEBEZEH

(&
B ENH=1H1NMEH

Environmental energy

project construction
and operation
RAKREAREREE
2023 2022
“B-ZE  CZE_CF
(Unaudited)  (Unaudited)
(REBEHR) (REER)
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BETT
(Restated)
(&=3))
Segment results: HEE:
Reportable segment profit BTRENDEF
(Adjusted EBITDA) (B HEBITDA) 4,726,705 4,968,829

Elimination of inter-segment profits

Reportable segment profit derived from the
Group’s external customers

Finance costs

Depreciation and amortisation, including

unallocated portion

Unallocated head office and corporate income
Unallocated head office and corporate expenses

Consolidated profit before tax

BN BEEN

REASEIREPZ
BTRENHEN

YHBER

TEREH
(BREADERN)

AORRARRERN

ANEBRARERA

GARRARR

A
X
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Environmental water Greentech
project construction project construction
and operation and operation Others Total
REKBERREREE BERRAABREREE Hith )
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022

—E-=f -F--F# CZE-=f _-E--F CZE--f "T--% CZE-=E -FI-—-F
(Unaudited)  (Unaudited) (Unaudited)  (Unaudited) (Unaudited)  (Unaudited) (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)
(RBEZ) (REER) (REBR) (REBR)  (REBR)  (REER)  (REBR)  (REER)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT AR BETT BETT BETT BETT BT AT
(Restated)
(mE5)

1,289,680 1,067,376 1,281,035 1,334,647 77,627 82,954 17,375,047 7,453,806

(84,776)  (161,179)

7,290,271 7,292,627
(1,739,255)  (1,684,504)

(1,131,584)  (1,037,198)
206,095 50,028
(119,878)  (294,861)

4,505,649 4,326,002
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements %R & Bt i R &K M =E

2.

REEARE (RE)BRAF

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 2. KREDEER(E)

(continued)

(i) Information about profit or loss, assets (i) Bz BEEREBEZER
and liabilities (continued) (

For the six months ended 30 June

Bl ENH =1 HINEA

Environmental energy

project construction
and operation
RREREAREREE
2023 2022
“B-ZE  CZE_CF
(Unaudited)  (Unaudited)
(REER) (REER)
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT
(Restated)
(g =51)
Other segment information: HiaHgs
Depreciation and amortisation FEREHE 489,967 400,417
Impairment of debtors YR FEE 56,563 55,665
Impairment/(write-back of impairment) of Eifelizaie,/
other receivables, net (BREE)FE - 53,886
Impairment/(write-back of impairment) of ANEERE/
contract assets, net (ERE#E) 58 (2,153) 5479
Impairment of goodwill EERE - 376,705
Impairment of intangible assets RVEERSE = -
Additions to property, plant and equipment  EIREENE - BERRE
and right-of-use assets during the period NREREEE 341,536 146,897
Additions to intangible assets and non-current SR E &R EE RERTE
portion of prepayments during the period ZIEREER 906,370 1,876,048
Additions to non-current portion of contract ~ EEREEANBEZFERD
assets during the period kb 2,817,176 6,114,013
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Environmental water
project construction
and operation

RRIBEEREREE

2023 2022
—g-=F C—ZC-CF
(Unaudited)  (Unaudited)

(REERE)  (REEHR)
HK$'000  HKS$'000

Greentech
project construction
and operation

BERREEREREE

2023 2022
—B-zE  ZE-CF
(Unaudited)  (Unaudited)

(REER) (REEHR)
HK$'000  HKS$'000

Others

Hit
2023 2022
—E-ZE  -E-CF

(Unaudited)  (Unaudited)
(REER) (REER)
HK$’000 HK$'000

103
Total
ag
2023 2022
—E-ZE C-E-CE

(Unaudited)  (Unaudited)
(REER) (REER)
HK$'000 HK$'000

BETR BETT BETR BB BETR BETT  EETn BETR
(Restated)
(m=51)
108,153 118,345 482,845 467,334 49,349 41,663 1,130,314 1,027,759
123,398 124,054 6,284 28,127 - 12,100 186,245 219,946
(2,768) 17,420 - - - - (2,768) 71,306
445 919 438 435 - - (1,270) 6,833
- - - - - - - 376,705
- 14,699 - - - - - 14,699
23,529 48,645 192,039 252,312 15,898 62,406 573,002 510,260
17 458,679 541,826 568,766 8,102 1862 1,456,469 2,905,355

1,401,791 1,697,479

179,809 386,392

4,398,776 8,097,884
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements %R & Bt i R &K M =E

2. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

2. @EHWAHS)

(continued)
() Information about profit or loss, assets (i) #B= BEREEBEZEH
and liabilities (continued) (#&)

(i)

Environmental energy

project construction
and operation
BREFEARALES
At At
30 June 31 December
2023 2022
S N
“g-cf C-Z-CF
~A=tH TZA=tH
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEER) (BE%)
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BRI
Reportable segment assets BYREZAHEE 107,473,305 110,305,556
Unallocated head office and corporate assets FARENARGEEE
Consolidated total assets GREERE
Reportable segment liabilities BYREZAHEE 54,065,322 52,448,424
Unallocated head office and corporate liabiies KA REAARLLERE
Consolidated total liabilities GRBREEE

Information about a major customer

For the six months ended 30 June 2023 and
2022, the revenue from the Group’s largest
customer amounted to less than 10% of the
Group’s total revenues.

(i) EEXFEH

HE_ZT_=_FK=F
ZZERNA=FTHIERN
@A REAXEEZK
EREZWEMAEEK
=HBEIR10% °
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Environmental water Greentech
project construction project construction
and operation and operation Others Total
RRKBEAREREE BERREARERES Aft ot
At At At At At At At At
30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
R i R i i i S i
- St i S - St g —E-=E —F--F -z C-T-CF

~A=TR fTZA=1t-R ~A=TR TZA=t-A ~AZTR tZA=t-A ~A=TH t-A=t-H
(Unaudited) (Audited)  (Unaudited) (Audited)  (Unaudited) (Audited)  (Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEH) (EER)  (REER) (E&k)  (REER) (mgn)  (REER) (2%E7)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT AR BT AR BB AT

33,310,969 33,172,387 39,697,943 39,250,554 2,569,472 3,084,121 183,051,689 185,812,618

6,371,461 4,785,180

189,423,150 190,597,798

20,348,472 20,454,421 26,228,787 25,604,727 1,885,406 2,163,579 102,527,987 100,761,151

20,954,429 27,237,754

123,482,416 127,998,905




1 06 China Everbright Environment Group Limited
REEARE (RE)BRAF

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements %R & Bt i R &K M =E

3. REVENUE 3. s
An analysis of revenue is as follows: WD T -

For the six months ended 30 June
HEAA=TRLEAEA

2023 2022

—B-ZE —E-CF

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

(REBEK) (REE%)

HK$’000 HK$'000

BRI BT

(Restated)

(7))

Revenue from contracts with customers EF &4z

Revenue from environmental energy project JB{R4CIEIE B B RSz

construction services 2,656,834 6,953,356
Revenue from environmental water project  RR{R7KHKIE B B ERBWE

construction services 950,232 1,436,836
Revenue from greentech project HERRE B BERENE

construction services 463,148 711,460
Revenue from environmental energy project  JB{R4¢/EIE B B4 Rislhzs

operation services 4,539,897 4,518,503
Revenue from environmental water project  R{R7KHKIE B E S RisUE

operation services 1,557,186 1,466,836
Revenue from greentech project operation &3 /%18 B B4Rz

services 3,175,693 3,318,029
Revenue from equipment construction and £ EEE R TEREREE

installation services and sales Wi 228,708 213,639

Others X 37,278 23,567

Total revenue from contracts with customers B A 414 E5E 13,608,976 18,642,226
Finance income from service concession  BRASHSSTIE &g T 7 8175

arrangements WA 2,688,191 2,806,457

Total revenue Waeg 16,297,167 21,448,683
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REVENUE (continued)

The aggregated revenues from environmenta
energy project construction and operation services,
environmental water project construction and
operation services, greentech project construction
and operation services and finance income derived
from the local government authorities in the PRC
amounted to HK$13,681,661,000 (six months
ended 30 June 2022: HK$19,074,471,000) for the
six months ended 30 June 20283. The revenues
are included in “Environmental energy project
construction and operation”, “Environmenta
water project construction and operation” and
“Greentech project construction and operation”
segments as disclosed in note 2 to this unaudited
interim financial information.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements %R & Bt i R &K M =E

3. REVENUE (continued) 3. Wa=m#E)
Disaggregated revenue information BoaFB=ER
For the six months ended 30 June 2023 BEz-_Z-_=F/A=+H
1EREA
Environmental ~ Environmental Greentech
energy project  water project project

construction construction construction

and operation  and operation  and operation
Segments RRERER RRKBER BERRER Others Total
b BEREE BEREE BEREE A ag
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)
(REEH) (REEH) (REEHR) (REER)  (REEQ)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR BT A¥TR BRI RYTR

Type of goods and services S RBHER

Construction services BERKE 2,656,834 950,232 463,148 - 4,070,214
Operation services E2MRE 4,530,897 1,557,186 3,175,693 37,218 9,310,054
Equipment constructionand ~ EERERTERK

installation services and sales  R#&E - - - 228,708 208,708

Total revenue from contracts REANMZEEE
vith customers 7,196,731 2,507,418 3638841 265086 13,608,076

Geographical location of EFfELE

customers*
Mainland China PEARE 6,875,591 2,459,164 3,633,218 265,986 18,233,959
Germany 6 - 48,254 2,018 - 50,272
Poland B 288,480 - - - 288,480
Vigtnam il 32,660 - - - 32,660
Hong Kong Bk - - 3,605 - 3,605

Total revenue from contracts REAHMZEE
with customers 7,196,731 2,507,418 3,638,841 265,986 13,608,976

X

EPAEAR RS R R -

The geographical location of customers is based on the location of which the
Services were provided.

Timing of revenue recognition W2 MEMH
Over time R-BBRER 7,196,731 2,395,892 3,476,510 215,661 13,284,794
Atapoitin time HE-mE - 111,526 162,331 50,325 324,182

Total revenue from contracts REAHMZEEE
vith customers 7,196,731 2,507,418 3638841 205086 13,608,076
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3. REVENUE (continued) 3. W= #)
Disaggregated revenue information BARWBER (&)
(continued)
For the six months ended 30 June 2022 BE-_E-_—_F€,<xA=1+H
LE7<{E A
Environmental Environmental Greentech
energy project water project project
construction construction construction
and operation and operation and operation
Segments RReERER RRKEEE SEREER Others Total
G BEREE RERER BEREE Efb £
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) ~ (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(=7 (REzH) (REzR)  (REER)  (REER)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BT BETR BETT
(Restated) (Restated)
(f5%3)) (f&E31)
Type of goods and services SR RHER
Construction services BERS 6,953,356 1,436,836 711,460 - 9,101,652
Operation services EeMRK 4,518,503 1,466,836 3,318,029 23,567 9,326,935
Equipment constructionand ~ EERERTERE
installation services and sales & - - - 213,639 213,639
Total revenue from contracts with EFA 4z 4%E
customers 11,471,859 2,903,672 4,029,489 237,206 18,642,226
Geographical location of EEHEHE
customers*
Mainland China FEAR 11,158,265 2,901,020 4,024,527 237,206 18,321,018
Germany 2B - 2,652 2,419 - 5071
Poland B# 278,244 - - - 278,244
Vigtnam b 35,350 - - - 35,350
Hong Kong BB - - 2,543 - 2,543
Total revenue from contracts ~ EFANKEAE
with customers 11,471,859 2,908,672 4,029,489 237,206 18,642,226
* The geographical location of customers is based on the location of which the Y REMEMERRERIEES o
services were provided.
Timing of revenue recognition WHHZERE
Over time H—BERR 11,471,859 2,845,221 3,942,867 71,807 18,331,754
At a point in time RE-HY - 58,451 86,622 165,399 310,472
Total revenue from contracts ~ EFANKEAE
with customers 11,471,859 2,903,672 4,029,489 237,206 18,642,226
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3. REVENUE (continued) 3. W= #)
Disaggregated revenue information RBoFWBER(E)
(continued)
Set out below is the reconciliation of the revenue TXHEINEFE K WS
from contracts with customers with the amounts HERIFTIRESZE AR -
disclosed in the segment information:
For the six months ended 30 June 2023 HE-_ZT-_=%FxA=+H
1E7]E A
Environmental ~ Environmental Greentech
energy project  water project project
construction construction construction
and operation ~ and operation  and operation
Segments RRERER RRKBER BERRER Others Total
P BEREE BEREE BEREE Hft ]

(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)
(REEH) (REEH) (REER) (REER)  (REER)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BB BYETT BETT BB BT

Revenue from contracts EFAHKE
with customers
External customers HREF 9,130,530 3,082,000 3,818,651 265,986 16,297,167
Inter-segment revenue el 49,406 - 1,203 308,587 359,286
Reportable segment revenue BT HE 2 HHME 9,179,936 3,082,000 3,819,944 574,573 16,656,453
Less: Finance income B BBRA (1,933,799) (574,582) (179,810) - (2,688,191)
Inter-segment adjustments 2 BEHE
and eliminations RH# (49,406) = (1203 (308587  (350,286)

Total revenue from contracts REANMZEE
with customers 7,196,731 2,507,418 3,638,841 265,986 13,608,976
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REVENUE (continued) 3. WEs#E)
Disaggregated revenue information BAFWRER (&)
(continued)
For the six months ended 30 June 2022 BHE-_T-_—_#F#A=1H
1EREA
Environmental Environmental Greentech
energy project water project project
construction construction construction
and operation and operation and operation
Segments RREFER BRKBER SEERER Others Total
7 BEREE BERER BEREE Efth it
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)  (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(xE#7) (727 (REER)  (REER)  (REER)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT RETT BB BETT
(Restated) (Restated)
(%5 (5 &3))
Revenue from contracts EFENKE
with customers
External customers IREF 13,512,668 3,478,939 4,219,870 237,206 21,448,683
Inter-segment revenue AHERE 49212 - 421 536,911 586,544
Reportable segment revenue BYREZPBME 13,561,880 3,478,939 4,220,291 TT417 22,085,227
Less: Finance income B B 2,040,809) (575,267) (190,381) - (2,806,457)
Inter-segment adjustments 5 HERHE
and eliminations R (49,212) - (421)  (536,911) (586,544
Total revenue from contracts B AANELE
with customers 11,471,859 2,908,672 4,029,489 237,206 18,642,226

As detailed in note 2, the Group redefined its
business segments. Certain revenue previously
included in “Others” has been reclassified
to the “Revenue from environmental energy
project construction services” and “Revenue
from environmental energy project operation
services” in the analysis of revenue and to the
“Environmental energy project construction and
operation” in disaggregate revenue information.
Accordingly, comparative figures have been
reclassified.

AR EE2 P RE AL - AN SR B BT
FEBTEB DAL - LAl
ATEM | ZETRSEEER
BONMPEF DO BREIIRIREE
RIA B RERS s | K&
TREETRIA BB R Wak |
WHEE Sl mE R P EH
DHEERRFRERABZER
BE - At LRBFEE

o HE -
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4. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 4, BRIEBRIAF]

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after

charging/(crediting):

AEHEZ KRB A A H
B (GEA)

For the six months ended 30 June
HEAA=TRLAEA

2023 2022
—EBCCE —Z2--
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEH) (REE&%)
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Depreciation e
- property, plant and equipment -N% BERZRE 335,137 324,572
- right-of-use assets —FREEE 37,035 34,941
Amortisation - intangible assets BE-EWAE 759,412 677,685
Dividend income fREMA (857) -
Interest income FEBUA (64,855) (79,361)
Government grants* B (72,630) (111,895)
Value-added tax refund™ BERRE (204,507) (120,593)
Impairment of debtors R HEIE 186,245 219,946
Impairment/(write-back of impairment) of ~ EAEWEERE,/
other receivables, net (FERR)FE (2,768) 71,306
Impairment/(write-back of impairment) of ~ AXEEHE/
contract assets, net (FlEEE)3E (1,270) 6,833
Impairment of goodwill BERE = 376,70
Impairment of intangible assets BYEERE - 14,699
Fair value losses/(gains), net; DREBE/ (338
Other financial assets - unlisted EthBBEE-
equity investment FEMRARE 2,008 (318)
Other financial assets - unlisted HEhiBEE-
investments FETRE 22,659 11,396
Employee benefit expense: EERNRX :
Wages, salaries, allowances and 1% %% 2R
benefits in kind BNl 1,854,552 1,780,644
Retirement scheme contributions RIRET BN 126,773 122,043
1,981,325 1,902,687
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4. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (continued)

Hok

Government grants were granted during the six
months ended 30 June 2023 mainly to subsidise
certain environmental energy, environmental water
and greentech projects of the Group in the PRC
and Poland. There are no unfulfilled conditions
and other contingencies attached to the receipts
of those grants. There is no assurance that the
Group will continue to receive such grants in the
future.

Value-added tax refund was received/receivable
during the six months ended 30 June 2023
in relation to certain environmental energy,
environmental water and greentech project
operations of the Group in the PRC. There are
no unfulfilled conditions and other contingencies
attached to the receipts of such tax refund. There
is no assurance that the Group will continue to
receive such tax refund in the future.

Impairment of goodwill for the six months ended
30 June 2022 was included in “Other income and
gains/(losses), net” on the face of consolidated
income statement.

*%
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5.

FINANCE COSTS

China Everbright Environment Group Limited

S}

REEARE (RE)BRAF

MEER

For the six months ended 30 June
HEAA=TRLEAEA

Interest on bank and other loans
Interest on corporate bond, ABS,
MTN and SCP

Interest on lease liabilities
Less: Interest expenses capitalised
into construction in progress*

BITRAMEF S
s BEXRES
PHSERBEARES

A RERIRERLZ

2023 2022
—BC=E “EoCf
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REER)
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BETT
1,509,945 1,481,788
238,349 220,713
2,963 2,583
(12,002) (20,580)
1,739,255 1,684,504

* The borrowing costs have been capitalised at
rates ranging from 3.30% to 3.50% (six months
ended 30 June 2022: 3.65% to 4.55%) per annum

during the six months ended 30 June 2023.

* BHE-_Z-_=%€,xA=+H
LEREA - BERANENT
3.30%%3.50%(HE—T—
ZHEXNA=TRHIEARMEA -
3.65%%4.55%) 2 R R #E
TEARE -
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INCOME TAX

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has
been made as the Group did not generate any
assessable profits arising in Hong Kong for the
six months ended 30 June 2023 (six months
ended 30 June 2022: Nil).

Tax for the PRC operations is charged at the
statutory rate of 25% of the assessable profits
under tax rules and regulations in the PRC.
During the period, certain PRC subsidiaries are
subject to tax at 50% of the standard tax rate
or fully exempted from income tax under the
relevant tax rules and regulations.
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Tﬁ/’iﬂi ZSO%%VMRIE&
EFEHRBEBRZEHRR -

For the six months ended 30 June
HERA=THLAEA

2023 2022

“B-=f —E-C
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REBEHK) (ROEHR)
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETT

Current - Elsewhere: AE-HER -

Charge for the period THm R 582,572 354,116
Underprovision in prior periods BEBEARETR 18,985 28,772
Deferred ET 512,461 600,451
Total tax expense for the period AERNER S 1,114,018 983,339
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7.

DIVIDENDS

For the six months ended 30 June

BEARZTHLEAEA

Dividend attributable to the period:
Interim - HK14.0 cents

(six months ended 30 June 2022:

HK15.0 cents) per ordinary share

Final dividend in respect of
the previous financial year paid
during the period - HK9.0 cents
(six months ended 30 June 2022:
HK15.0 cents) per ordinary share

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE 8.
TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of basic earnings per share
amount for the six months ended 30 June
2023 is based on the profit for the period
attributable to equity holders of the Company
of HK$2,784,923,000 (six months ended
30 June 2022: HK$2,811,148,000) and
6,142,975,292 (six months ended 30 June 2022:
6,142,975,292) ordinary shares in issue during
the period.

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary
shares in issue during the six months ended 30
June 2023 and 2022.

2023 2022
—EC-ZE —E-CF
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEEH) (REE%)
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT
$%ﬁh§
RERE - ERTER
4&@M@§_2::¢
ANAZTEIEAER
15.08541) 860,017 921,446
BRER - ERHEEZ
KBRS -GREER
9@%M&E*§::
NAZTEIEAER
15,0711 552,868 921,446
K%ﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁA@%@%
ey
BE-—_ZE-_=Ff~A=+
BEAEAZEREARA
MEBEDHEBEARAERRE
EAELMAHEARNE®
2,784,923,000 T ( & &= —
T —_HFRNA=Z+HIER
@ A : /& ¥ 2,811,148,000
m)M&%WE%ﬁ%ﬁ%
6,142,975 292/ (= - =

__¢AH_+H¢A“H5
6,142,975,292/% )51 & o

BE_T-_=—Fh=-_FT=-—
iﬂﬂf+5¢*@ﬁ’$
SEYEEMDETAE
HETE LR -



Interim
—EB==

Report 2023

vl 117
9. CONTRACT ASSETS 9. BHIAE
At At
30 June 31 December
2023 2022
R=BZ=f RZZZZF
~AB=tR  +ZA=1+-H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEEH) (g&%)
NOt\eS HK$'000 HK$'000
fizE BB BRI
Non-current ERB
Service concession assets RS RAREE (a) 95,403,589 96,907,828
Other contract assets HEANEE 156,307 158,808
Less: Impairment W HER (81,376) (82,216
95,478,520 96,984,420
Current bk
Service concession assets RBGTEEEEE (a) 8,405,258 8,339,084
Unbilled renewable energy tariff subsidy 7% & & 4 & B 2 B8 (b) 4,606,145 3,804,093
Other contract assets HiANEE () 439,939 445589
Less: Impairment R (138,898) (142,836)
13,312,444 12,445,930
Total k] 108,790,964 109,430,350
Contract assets arising from BRORBETEEE
performance under construction ZHEERERN
contracts in connection with service T4 5T A
concession arrangements, which [BEWEE]Z
are included in “intangible assets” ANBE 2,962,401 3,265,071
Notes: KaF
(@) Included in “Service concession assets” are @ EIRBEEALEEEE]
amounts of HK$634,985,000 (31 December - B 158 # 634,985,000
2022: HK$525,427,000) and HK$710,819,000 T(ZT_—F+-A=+
(31 December 2022: HK$704,322,000) which are —H : #B%525,427,0007T)
related to the construction service under Build- &/’5%710 819,0007T (:%
Operate-Transfer (“BOT”), Build-Operate-Own ——f&+-A=+-H: &
(“BOO”) and Transfer-Operate-Transfer (“TOT”) #704,322,0007T) * 2 7l
arrangements rendered by the Group to a non- TAEBIBIRESE —EE —

controlling shareholder of a non wholly-owned
subsidiary and a related company of a non wholly-
owned subsidiary, respectively.

B ([BOT) - 23 —3&
& —#4H ([BOO]) k#EH% —
BE-—EBR(TOTHRHR
FEEEMEB R A 2 IR
%&#%EWE’ATZ%H&*
RAFRHRZ AERRTS o
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g

China Everbright Environment Group Limited

CONTRACT ASSETS (continued)
Notes: (continued)

(@)

(continued)

“Service concession assets” arose from the
Group’s revenue from construction under BOT,
BOO and TOT arrangements and bear interest at
rates ranging from 4.30% to 7.83% (31 December
2022: 4.40% to 7.83%) per annum. Among the
total of HK$103,808,847,000 (31 December 2022:
HK$105,246,912,000), HK$86,070,876,000 (31
December 2022: HK$86,250,171,000) relates to
BOT, BOO and TOT arrangements with operations
commenced.

Pursuant to the BOT, BOO and TOT arrangements,
the Group receives no payment from the grantors
during the construction period and receives
service fees when relevant services are rendered
during the operating periods. The service
concession assets are not yet due for payment
and will be settled by service fees to be received
during the operating periods of the service
concession arrangements. Amounts billed will be
transferred to debtors (note 10).

All of the current portion of service concession
assets are expected to be recovered within one
year.

The balance represented government on-grid
tariff subsidy for certain projects which will be
billed and settled upon the successful completion
of government administrative procedures
pursuant to notices jointly issued by the Ministry
of Finance, the National Development and
Reform Commission and the National Energy
Administration.

Y AR
BHE

PEERIRE (RE)ERAF

Hiat - (&)

(a)

([RGFHEEREEE]D
R A% B HBOT * BOO &
TOTRH T 2 BE W= FTE
Ao BHRF B R430%E
783% (ZE-_—_F+=_A
=+—H :4.40%%7.83%)
TERE c EREBE
103,808,847,0007L ( =& —
—F+=—A=+—8: B
105,246,912,0007C) F * #&
#86,070,876,000 7T ( — &
——HF+=—A=1+—8: %
#86,250,171,000 7T ) B§ F
B/ AEE 2BOT » BOOKX
TOTZHE ©

RIEFBEBOT - BOOKRTOT
ZH - AEEREEHRRT
SRR EAREERFKIE
R E S HNIEHE B R
BRKEIREE - RIEKT
WEREEEMAD AL
N DA AR 75 5 R A i i 2 B
ZEEHRBESIN B
BECHEBEREEREKERR
(BfzE10) »

RIGFRAEEREEZRE
MENE D FRE R R — F R
8] o

ERESRAETHB ZBF
LREEME - EBRRE
B BER - BSK B R AR
EREEMBEREREER
e BMZBH - R T
PR 1T AR Fr 12 3 B8 ) IR
[8] o
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9. CONTRACT ASSETS (continued)

H>

4 >R
SRERE
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9. BE (4

Notes: (continued) Hiet - (&)

(¢) The balance as at 30 June 2023 comprised (c) RZBE-_=FXA=+RHZ
contract assets of HK$358,984,000 (31 EABEBITRIBEERSE
December 2022: HK$377,322,000) arising from BRRMELEZENEERE
performance under environmental remediation 358,984,000 L (=& = =
service contracts, and HK$237,262,000 (31 F+-_A=+—8: B
December 2022: HK$227,075,000) arising from 377,322,0007T) R BT
performance under construction management TREERBAOMELEZ
service contracts. & #) & E B 237,262,000

T(ZEZZF+=ZA=+
— B : % % 227,075,000
JT) °
Such contracts include payment schedules which BERANHANAFBR
require stage payments over the service periods HERTERREEHANE ERIR
once milestones are reached. ELREER  FAXNNE
BRI e
The movements in the loss allowance for EHEEFREBERE 2#
impairment of contract assets are as follows: g
HK$’000
BET T
As at 1 January 2022 RZE-_—_F—HF—H 210,007
Impairment losses REEBE 34,793
Exchange realignment PE 5 AR (19,748)
As at 31 December 2022 (audited) RZZE-_—F+-_A=+—H

and 1 January 2023 (BER)R_Z_=%

—A—H 225,052
Write-back of impairment losses, net FEEEEEFE(ME4)

(note 4) (1,270)
Exchange realignment I 5 % (3,508)
As at 30 June 2023 (unaudited) RZTZ=FA=1H

(Ri&E%) 220,274
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10. DEBTORS, OTHER RECEIVABLES, 10. FRUKERFR « Efb U FRIR -

DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS Re RIENFIE
At At
30 June 31 December
2023 2022
RZZE-=F RoZE-—f
~AZTRE  +zZA=t-~H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(RBEH) (gE7)
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT
Non-current k|
Other receivables, EHENEE  Be R
deposits and prepayments ENRE 2,895,348 3,139,237
Less: Impairment - other receivables W B - Bt EWGUR (32,604) (33,354)
2,862,744 3,105,883
Current Vi)
Debtors R 19,724,921 16,252,797
Less: Impairment R (1,074,011) (937,452)
18,650,910 15,315,345
Other receivables, EtEYEE  BER
deposits and prepayments EENE 4,260,577 5,248,258
Less: Impairment - other receivables W BB - EHEWEUR (83,502) (87,342)
4,177,075 5,160,916
22,827,985 20,476,261
Total et 25,690,729 23,582,144
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10. DEBTORS, OTHER RECEIVABLES,

DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
(continued)

Included in “Debtors, other receivables, deposits
and prepayments” of the Group are debtors
of which HK$86,394,000 (31 December 2022:
HK$22,605,000), HK$15,078,000 (31 December
2022: HK$15,397,000), HK$38,475,000
(31 December 2022: HK$13,963,000) and
HK$10,663,000 (31 December 2022: Nil) are
due from the Group’s joint ventures, associates,
a related company of a non wholly-owned
subsidiary and non-controlling shareholders of
non wholly-owned subsidiaries, respectively.
Debtors mainly represent revenue from the
provision of operation services for environmental
energy projects, environmental water projects,
greentech projects and the provision of
environmental protection project equipment
construction and installation services and sales
of related equipment and the billed amounts of
the service concession assets.

Included in “Debtors, other receivables,
deposits and prepayments” are bills receivable
of HK$82,256,000 (31 December 2022:
HK$63,135,000). Debtors are due within 30 to
90 days from the date of billing.
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—HA=+4+—H :13,963,000)
REWAEENIEDENE
NAElZ BB RRIRIE - B
#10,663,000T (=T = =
FT+-_A=+—H:8)R
RUAEENEZENE R
Al 2 SEEB AR R RIE o B
EREIERBREHERRER
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RIRIE R 2 EBEIREIARIR
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10. DEBTORS, OTHER RECEIVABLES,

DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
(continued)
The ageing analysis of debtors, based on the
date of invoice (or date of revenue recognition, if
earlier) and net of loss allowance, as at the end of
the reporting period is as follows:

1 %’*mﬁﬁﬁ(‘}zu&mﬁ@w
B URFER/E)HE
H&EE%’X(E?DB%E‘E‘?E%%)E@
BERARZREDOTMT

At At
30 June 31 December
2023 2022

R-B-=%& i —
~AB=tR  +ZA=1+-H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(RBER) (E&%)
HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI BETT
Within 1 month TR —{EA 2,837,814 2,495,283
More than 1 month but within 2 months ~ #B— 1A AEAZHHEA 1,025,208 1,480,883
More than 2 months but within 4 months M AAETZRIEA 2,208,358 1,402,981
More than 4 months but within 7 months ~ B:BM{EFERZR+EA 2,254,362 1,809,460
More than 7 months but within 13 months B+ EAEAZH+=EA 3,255,611 2,480,817
More than 13 months BAT=EA 7,069,557 5,645,921
18,650,910 15,315,345

Included in “Debtors, other receivables,
deposits and prepayments” are debtors of
HK$6,239,887,000 (31 December 2022:
HK$5,212,657,000), which were measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income
as these debtors are managed within a business
model with the objective of both holding to
collect contractual cash flows and selling for
working capital management and the contractual
terms of these receivables give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

[FEUBR ZX - H b sk
RERBNNZKE|FBRIERE
Iz BR 38 ¥ 6,239,887,000
T(ZE_—F+_-_A=+
— B : ¥ #5,212,657,000
TT) c BERERWERTVZ AR
Bt A E2mEmBRAGTE
RRAEZSEEWRERNEZ
BEAENKDANRERE
NEEELEESEB 2%
BEAPEE MxSEEK
RIBZEHNGEREHREE
AHELEEAINAE KA
BEASHFEZRERE -
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10. DEBTORS, OTHER RECEIVABLES,
DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

123

10. EUERR ~ oAt YR IR
R MANTIRGE)

(continued)

The movements in the loss allowance for
impairment of debtors measured at amortised

cost are as follows:

RS AN ET 8 2 R UAR X
MEBRREZZSHMT :

HK$’000
BETT
As at 1 January 2022 RZZE-_—F—HF—H 661,888
Impairment losses, net HEEBETE 338,451
Exchange realignment MEH AR (62,887)
As at 31 December 2022 (audited) RoZE-—F+— ﬂ +—H
and 1 January 2023 (BEZ) KT ==F—A—H 937,452
Impairment losses (note 4) EREER(WE) 157,653
Exchange realignment IE A (21,094)
As at 30 June 2023 (unaudited) RZZEZ=5, AR=+H
(REERZ) 1,074,011
The movements in the loss allowance for impairment RAnBEFAEMEEKRA
of debtors measured at fair value through other 5t B 2 JE MR BRORE 1R S 18
comprehensive income are as follows: H2EBIT -
HK$’000
BETT
As at 1 January 2022 R-ZE-_—F—A—H -
Impairment losses, net REBETE 157,888
Exchange realignment I (7,312)
As at 31 December 2022 (audited) RZE-_—_F+-A=1+—H
and 1 January 2023 (&EZ) R -—Z-=%—H—H 150,576
Impairment losses (note 4) FEIBEE (M) 28,592
Exchange realignment [& 5, A= (3,190)

As at 30 June 2023 (unaudited)

RZFE-=F,A=+H
(REEER)

175,978
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10. DEBTORS, OTHER RECEIVABLES,

DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
(continued)
Included in “Other receivables, deposits and
prepayments” at 30 June 2023 is an advance
made to local government authority in relation
to service concession arrangements amounting
to HK$18,934,000 (31 December 2022:
HK$20,985,000) which is unsecured, interest-
bearing at the rates announced by the People’s
Bank of China, and will be settled by instalments
from 2023 to 2026.

Included in “Other receivables, deposits and
prepayments” under current assets at 30 June
2023 is loan to the Group’s non-controlling
shareholder of a non wholly-owned subsidiary
of HK$3,791,000 (31 December 2022:
HK$25,971,000), which is secured, interest-
bearing at 110% of the rates announced by
the People’s Bank of China and repayable
by December 2023, and other receivable of
HK$1,826,000 (31 December 2022: Nil) due
from the Group’s non-controlling shareholder
of a non wholly-owned subsidiary and a related
company of a non-wholly owned subsidiary.

Included in “Other receivables, deposits and
prepayments” under current assets at 30
June 2023 are advances of HK$5,277,000
(31 December 2022: HK$9,365,000) to the
Group’s associate, which are unsecured,
repayable on demand and interest-bearing
at a rate of 4.75% per annum, and other
receivables of HK$1,298,000 (31 December
2022: HK$5,369,000) due from the Group’s
associates, which are unsecured, interest-free
and repayable within one year.
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10. DEBTORS, OTHER RECEIVABLES,

DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
(continued)
Included in “Other receivables, deposits and
prepayments” at 30 June 20283 are loan to the
Group’s joint ventures of HK$25,845,000 (31
December 2022: HK$26,806,000), which are
unsecured, interest-bearing at 125% of the loan
prime rate announced by the People’s Bank of
China (“LPR”), and repayable by 2024, and other
receivables and advances to the Group’s joint
ventures of HK$21,663,000 (31 December 2022:
HK$18,396,000), which are unsecured, interest-
free and repayable within one year.

The movements in the loss allowance for
impairment of other receivables are as follows:

125

b
2
=

o | | S S e
F | g HRA m

Agﬁ%ﬂ [%?X% % R
= )125% 8 - LAR =
T FRTEE  RIRET
$%IA%/£¥ZE{‘M§W
FRIA I B3R5 ¥ 21,663,000
7c< T t-A= +—
B : %#18,396,0007T) * &
REER 28 WER—
FREE -

A 18 W ROA R 4B S 1R B B
ZEEBIMT

HK$’000

BET T

As at 1 January 2022 N-ZE-_—F—H—H 20,350

Impairment losses REBE 107,035

Exchange realignment [& 5 A% (6,689)
As at 31 December 2022 (audited) R-BE-—F+=-A=+—H

and 1 January 2023 () k=T ==F—HA—H 120,696

Write-back of impairment losses (note 4) i BRI # (Mizr4) (2,768)

Exchange realignment fEH AR (1,822)

As at 30 June 2023 (unaudited) RZEZ=FA=1H
(RigER) 116,106

All of the current portion of the above balances
are expected to be recovered or recognised as
expenses within one year.

Lt er e A RS BB
BRI — F R E R ER A
Fs °
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11. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND 11. EERFIEITF K M AT R EHE
DEPOSITS WITH BANKS WITH MATURITY B=MEA 2 RITFK

PERIOD OVER THREE MONTHS

At At
30 June 31 December
2023 2022

RZBZ=% i St
AA=TH +ZA=1t—H

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REEHK) (mE%)

Note HK$'000 HK$'000

MizE BETT BETT

Pledged bank deposits BHEBRITER (8) 301,887 1,163,850
Deposits with banks with maturity ~— FHEBB=FAZ

period over three months RITER 33,741 27,651

335,628 1,191,501

Note: KiaE -

(a) As at 30 June 2023, bank deposits are pledged (8 RZBE-_=FA~A=+H8"
to secure certain bank loans of the Group and are RITEAREETEREAER
pledged to banks for the issuance of guarantees ETHRITERZERR - A
by the banks to the grantors in respect of the EBERETRITMAERE
specific performance of the duties by the Group ETRBEIEEERBET
under certain service concession agreements. ZHEBAEEMAEEA

BHER BMEEFRTER
81T °

“Pledged bank deposits” of HK$10,057,000 at RZEBZ=F+=A=+—

31 December 2022 are deposits placed with a A - #%10,057,000t 2 [ 2

related party bank. IR IR 1T 17 58 | BT U BB

TRITZTFHR -
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12. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 12. Be RBSEEY

At At

30 June 31 December

2023 2022

~BC=EE i St

AAZTHE  TZA=t-H

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REER) (EE1)

HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT AR

Deposits with banks with maturity BEHOR=ER2BTER

period less than three months 23,002 116,482

Cash at banks and in hand BOERERS 8,511,902 10,474,760

8,534,904 10,591,242
“Cash and cash equivalents” of HK$375,017,000 RZZE-_=F~A=t+HZ
(31 December 2022: HK$583,193,000) at 30 5%’515375,017,0007E(: =
June 2023 are deposits placed with a related —F+=-A=+—8: &K
party bank. 583,193,0007T) 2 [ & kIR

&S @Y | A7 L B 8
A2 -
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13. CREDITORS, OTHER PAYABLES AND 13. FEISERFN « BRI FIE K
ACCRUED EXPENSES fEET & A
At At
30 June 31 December
2023 2022

R-E-ZF i Sted
~B=tR  t+ZA=t+-EH

(Unaudited) (Audited)
(RBEH) (%)
HK$000 HK$'000
BRI BETT
Creditors FERTERH 13,980,937 16,251,484
Other payables, acorued expenses and L tERFIE - B EA R
deferred income - government grants i Ny 5,458,116 6,720,023
19,439,053 22,971,507
Less: Non-current portion A ERBHG
- other payables, accrued expenses -EfERFE - Bt
and deferred income - government EBRRERKA-
grants BRfsE (868,992) (533,657)

Current portion wESH 18,570,061 22,437,850
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13. CREDITORS, OTHER PAYABLES AND 13. ETERER - A0 E (I RIA K&
ACCRUED EXPENSES (continued) FEETE R (&)
Included in “Creditors, other payables and [FEBEFR - b ERRIE R
accrued expenses” are creditors with the B ER T EEEMAERR -
following ageing analysis based on the date of HBREZHHFAE - ER®R
invoice as at the end of the reporting period: LR ZRE AT ¢
At At
30 June 31 December
2023 2022

RZEZ=% i St
AA=TH +ZA=1+—H

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REEHK) (L&%)

HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BETT

Within 6 months T4 AR 10,407,927 12,548,564
Over 6 months BiEANE A 3,573,010 3,702,920

13,980,937 16,251,484
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13. CREDITORS, OTHER PAYABLES AND

ACCRUED EXPENSES (continued)
Creditors totalling HK$8,999,425,000 (31
December 2022: HK$11,096,878,000) represent
construction payables for the Group’s BOT,
BOO and TOT arrangements. The construction
payables are not yet due for payment.

Included in “Creditors, other payables and
accrued expenses” are bills payables of
HK$592,576,000 (31 December 2022:
HK$144,932,000). Included in “Creditors,
other payables and accrued expenses” are
creditors of HK$3,679,000 (31 December
2022: HK$4,816,000) and HK$70,837,000
(31 December 2022: HK$71,031,000) due
to the Group’s associate and non-controlling
shareholders of non wholly-owned subsidiaries,
respectively, which are unsecured, interest-free
and repayable on credit terms similar to those
offered by the associate or the non-controlling
shareholders to their major customers.

A‘Eﬁ

& /\/%“iﬁsggg 425,000 7T
—E-_F+ZRAR=+—
B : % % 11,096,878,000
L) ZENEREBEEAEER
BOT  BOOKMTOTZ HE T 2
BETREMNKE -ZET
RN FRIEB AR -

[EAER - EfERMKE
REHER | haEEME
% 78 ¥ 592,576,000 7T ( =
;::¢+:Hz+faz
& % 144,032,0007T ) ° [ f&E
Hﬁfm H fth FE < BB K fE
FER IR REEMNAEER
BMERNARIFEZENRBE R
Al ZFEIER A R 2 B BR
& o o Rl A 3,679,000
7ﬂ_$::¢+_ﬂf+
H : 75%4,816,0007T) &
7 170,837,000 T (=& =
—HE+-—A=+—8 : B
71,031,0007T) ° szﬁﬂlﬁiﬁ

i%?ﬂij*fﬁﬁ % B B
NGIEE 2 5 e %Hi
%%}EZ@M ;fﬁﬂ%?ﬁ%u

S

3

0|

=
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13. CREDITORS, OTHER PAYABLES AND

ACCRUED EXPENSES (continued)
Included in “Other payables, accrued
expenses and deferred income — government
grants” at 30 June 20283 are other payables
of HK$19,826,000 (31 December 2022:
HK$101,000) and HK$16,062,000 (31
December 2022: HK$15,671,000) due to
the Group’s associate and non-controlling
shareholders of non wholly-owned subsidiaries,
respectively, which are unsecured, interest-free
and repayable on demand. Included in “Other
payables, accrued expenses and deferred
income — government grants” at 30 June 2023
is other payable of HK$1,182,000 (31 December
2022: HK$1,201,000) due to a non-controlling
shareholder of a non wholly-owned subsidiary,
which is unsecured, interest-free and repayable
within one year. Included in “Other payables
accrued expenses and deferred income —
government grants” at 30 June 2023 are other
payables of HK$214,705,000 (31 December
2022: HK$215,053,000) due to a non-controlling
shareholder of a non wholly-owned subsidiary,
which are unsecured, interest-bearing at the
rates announced by the People’s Bank of China
and repayable on demand.

w3.ﬁ§1#?ﬁ%ﬁ~;ﬂ

131

At P R,

FE=+E F (4

T ’v’*ii/\ﬁ + B Z
[Hth B RIE - Bt E
MR WA — ﬁﬁ@%ﬁJ
FoH ma%ﬁﬁ$ﬁl
““ﬂZEmﬁﬁ M
1&w&mmﬂ_7__¢+
—RA=+—H8 : #%101,000
) REMREZEHRBA TZ
FEIE AR AR R 2 E fth FE 3R
7 #16,062,000 7T ( = 2:
—F+-_A=Z+—8: &K
15,671,000 70 ) @ & & &K
2
H

= =]
Fﬁ@ﬁﬁmﬁ fEFt B
METWRA—BFH#B S ]
P BREEMIEZENBA
72#?&&%2%@%H
FXIE & ¥ 1,182,000 7T ( —
2::¢+:ﬂ:+*ﬁz
B #1,201,000T) © HAE
A - ﬁgﬁﬁﬁ FRNE
B -E_T_=ZFRX +
&Eﬁ@ﬁﬁmﬁ fEETE
BARELTERA —BF#HBE
FBREEMIEZENBA
A2 IEFE R IR 3R 2 H A fE A
FRIE 7 214,705,000 7T ( =
T —_F+_A=+—8:
7B #215,053,0007T) + £ A
ERE - BPBEARETA
Mz BRFBRBRENKE
}\%o
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14, SHARE CAPITAL 14, B
At At
30 June 31 December
2023 2022

RZEB-=E i —
~AB=tR  +ZA=1+-H

(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEHK) (EE%)
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT
Issued and fully paid: BETRBEHT
6,142,975,292 (31 December 2022: 6,142,975,202% (=%
6,142,975,292) ordinary shares ZZF+ZA=1+-8:
6,142,975,2028% ) L@k 17,329,537 17,329,537
15. COMMITMENTS 15, A
The Group had the following commitments at the RmEBRR - REEBUT
end of the reporting period: AE
(a) Purchase commitments outstanding in (a) BEAAXSEREEGNZ
connection with the Group’s construction FEEAENT ¢
contracts were as follows:
At At
30 June 31 December
2023 2022

R-BZ=F WZE-—F
ABZtR  tZA=t-A

(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (8ER)
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT

Contracted but not provided for RHEEES 4,443,762 3,073,325
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15. COMMITMENTS (continued)

(b)

(c)

At 30 June 2023, the Group had total future
lease payments under non-cancellable
lease contracts (including short-term
leases, leases of low-value assets and lease
contracts that have not yet commenced as
at 30 June 2023) as follows:

(b)

15, E¥E(E)
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At At

30 June 31 December
2023 2022
R-B-=%& RZE-ZF
AE=TH  t+ZA=1-H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEHK) (&%)
HK$'000
BETT

—£RN

Within one year

13,319

At 30 June 2023, the Group had
outstanding capital commitments relating
to the purchase of limited partnerships in
investment funds not provided for in this
unaudited interim financial information of
HK$389,793,000 (31 December 2022:
HK$395,999,000).

89,793,000 7T ( =
—A=z+-—
78 ¥ 395,999,000
L) BEEEL RER
KR EZP Y EE R
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15. COMMITMENTS (continued)

(d)

(e)

(f)

At 30 June 2023, the Group had an
outstanding capital commitment relating
to the capital contribution to an unlisted
equity investment not provided for in this
unaudited interim financial information
of HK$22,962,000 (31 December 2022:
HK$23,329,000).

At 30 June 2023, the Group had outstanding
capital commitment relating to the capital
contribution to associates not provided for
in this unaudited interim financial information
of HK$8,974,000 (31 December 2022:
HK$9,118,000).

At 30 June 2023, the Group had
outstanding capital commitment relating
to the capital contribution to joint ventures
not provided for in this unaudited interim
financial information of HK$27,495,000 (31
December 2022: HK$27,935,000).

(e)

(f)

NEEEZKRETT
¥ #8,974,000
7——£E+ )E]i
H : ##9,118,000
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16. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
In addition to the transactions and balances
disclosed elsewhere in this unaudited interim
financial information, the Group entered into
the following material related party transactions
during the period:

(a) The Group entered into the following related
party transactions with a related party bank:

135

6. BEt AR5

BrAREEZT MU HER
HA e RS Ms
RO REBREIAEILT
THERBE TR

(@) A&EEHE—KEH HﬁE
34T 7 51 R

5

For the six months ended 30 June

BEARZTHLAEA

2023 2022

“E-CE “E-CF

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

(RBER) (REE%)

HK$'000 HK$'000

BRI BT

Interest income FIBIA 3,592 9,413

Interest expense FESTH 7,371 8,700
At 30 June 2023, the Group’s bank loans RZEBE-_=ZFXA=
of HK$154,350,000 (31 December 2022: +8B AXEEABHE
HK$680,570,000) are due to a related party ¥ 154,350,000 7T 2 iR
bank. TER(ZEZZF+
“A=Z+—H8: &%
680,570,000 7T ) & %5 R
—REAWHIRITZER o
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China Everbright Environment Group Limited

16. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)
(a) (continued)
Included in loans from a related party bank

are:

(i)

(i

bank loans in aggregate of
HK$54,350,000 (31 December 2022:
HK$80,570,000) which are secured,
interest-bearing at LPR minus 0.80%
(81 December 2022: a rate of LPR
minus 0.80%) per annum, and will be
settled by instalments until 2023 to
2025 (31 December 2022: until 2023 to
2025); and

bank loans in aggregate of
HK$100,000,000 (31 December 2022:
HK$600,000,000) which are unsecured,
interest-bearing at 5.10% (31 December
2022: rates ranging from 4.77% to
5.29%) per annum, and will be settled
by 2026 (31 December 2022: by 2027).

6. BB I RS

PEERIRE (RE)ERAF

ELH

(a) (#&)
A HIRITIRE ZE X
BIE

(i)

(if)

RITERBEBEB
54,350,000 7T
(= f——¢+_
B=+—8: B
80,570,000 7© ) =)
BIRF  BRERE
W%M?ﬂom%z
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16. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)
(b) The Group entered into the following related
party transaction with an intermediate
holding company of the Group:

16. B@HE AR5 (#)

(b) 7% B 2 H A R E AR
AIEI T T3

5

137

N

/N

N

f
BAE T R

For the six months ended 30 June
HEAB=THLAEA

2023 2022

- S} —E-CF

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

(REEK) (REER)

HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BT

Interest expenses FESHE - 37,886
(c) The Group entered into the following related (c) AEBEHEIIZENB
party transactions with non-controlling NaElz IEERARRET AL

shareholders of non wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Group:

:
:

TTIBITRS

For the six months ended 30 June
HEAA=TRIEAEA

2023 2022
“E-CE —E-CF
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REBER) (REE%)
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT

Revenue from environmental water ~ RRKEIER ELRBIE
project operation services 42,671 44,377
Finance income BB 6,544 7,830
Cost of construction services BERBHRAR 27,431 183,115

v
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16. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)
(d) The Group entered into the following related
party transactions with a related company of
the Group:

China Everbright Environment Group Limited

REEARE (RE)BRAF

6. BT R 5 (#)

(d) AEBBEHE
37 T5 R

%
BT

L /NC]
25

For the six months ended 30 June
HEAA=tHLAEA

2023 2022
“E-cE —E-CF
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(RBEH) (REER)
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT
Revenue from environmental water ~ RR7KEIE B E S RBIE
project operation services 42,458 57,498
Finance income BT 24,408 26,193
(e) AEBEAESEE DR

(e) The Group entered into the following related
party transactions with joint ventures of the
Group:

ST TR R 5

For the six months ended 30 June

BEARZtHLEAEA

2023 2022
—EC-=EF —E-CF
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEH) (REEH)
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT
Revenue from environmental energy  B/RA5EIE B S RA IS
project construction services 206,608 715,684
Sales of machinery HERE 20,022 65,177
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16. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)
(f) The Group entered into the following related
party transactions with associates of the
Group:

16. B@HE AR5 (#)

139

(f) 725% B 8 E B A A
ST RHIBB RS ¢

For the six months ended 30 June
HEAB=THLAEA

2023 2022
—E-= —E-CF
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEH) (REER)
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT
Service expenses for operation of  JFKEERELRERY
waste water treatment plants 22,566 31,030
Sales of machinery HERS = 601

(g) The Group entered into the following related
party transaction with a fellow subsidiary of
the Group:

For the six months ended 30 June
HEXA=THLAEA

2023 2022

—EBCCE - S
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEK) (REE#%)
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETT

Purchase of a limited partnership HELE-EREESH

in an investment fund —FBEREAEBAA - 102,008
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16. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(9)

(h)

(continued)

As at 30 June 2023, the Group had an
outstanding capital commitment relating to
the abovementioned purchase of the limited
partnership interest in an investment fund
not provided for in this unaudited interim
financial information of HK$388,229,000 (31
December 2022: HK$394,442,000).

The Group entered into the following related
party transactions with fellow subsidiaries of
the Group:

(9)

(h)

PEERIRE (RE)ERAF

6. Bt R 5 (&)

i
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For the six months ended 30 June

BEAA=THLEAEA

2023 2022
“E-=% —E-C
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (KEEZ)
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
iR BET T BETT
Underwriting service fees EERBER fi 8,512 5,352
Insurance expenses RBHX (i) 66,693 51,589
Property management service fees M1%EERKER (i) 5,457 -
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16. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)
(h) (continued)
Notes:

(i)

(i)

(il

The underwriting services fee of the
issue of the RMB-denominated perpetual
capital instrument by the Company for
the six months ended 30 June 2023
was calculated pursuant to the relevant
underwriting agreement. Further details of
the underwriting agreement was disclosed in
the announcement of the Company dated 29
May 2023.

The underwriting service fees of the issue
of the RMB-denominated MTN by the
Company, China Everbright Greentech
Limited (“CEGL”) and China Everbright Water
Limited (“CEWL”") for the six months ended
30 June 2023 were calculated pursuant to
the relevant underwriting agreements. Further
details of the underwriting agreements
are disclosed in the announcement of
the Company dated 6 March 2023, the
announcement of CEGL dated 15 May 2023
and the announcement of CEWL date 17
April 20283.

The insurance expenses were charged by a
fellow subsidiary of the Group based on the
relevant medical insurance schemes clauses.

The property management service fees were
charged by a fellow subsidiary of the Group
based on the relevant services agreement.
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16. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)
(h) (continued)

During the six months ended 30 June 2023,
the Group’s office was leased from a fellow
subsidiary of the Group. As at 30 June
2023, the right-of-use assets related to the
office leased from the fellow subsidiary of
the Group amounted to HK$13,883,000 (31
December 2022: HK$17,585,000) and lease
liabilities of HK$13,750,000 (31 December
2022: HK$17,505,000) are due to the fellow
subsidiary of the Group. Depreciation on
right-of-use assets related to this office
amounted to HK$3,702,000 (six months
ended 30 June 2022: HK$5,096,000) and
interest on lease liabilities to the fellow
subsidiary of the Group amounted to
HK$331,000 (six months ended 30 June
2022: HK$130,000) during the six months
ended 30 June 2023.
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16. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

(i)

Transactions with other stated-owned
entities in Mainland China:

The Group operates in an economic
environment predominated by enterprises
directly or indirectly owned and/or controlled
by the PRC government through its
numerous authorities, affiliates or other
organisations (collectively “Other SOEs”).
During the six months ended 30 June
2023, the Group had transactions with
Other SOEs including, but not limited to the
revenue, bank deposits and borrowings,
and utilities consumptions. The directors of
the Company consider that the transactions
with Other SOEs are activities in the
ordinary course of the Group’s business,
and that the dealings of the Group have
not been significantly or unduly affected by
the fact that the Group and Other SOEs
are ultimately controlled or owned by the
PRC government. The Group has also
established pricing policies for products and
services and such pricing policies are not
carried out on non-market terms and do not
depend on whether or not the customers
are Other SOEs. Having due regard to
the substance of the relationships, the
directors of the Company are of the opinion
that none of these transactions is material
related party transaction that would require
separate disclosure.
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ABRE(RE)BRDA

16. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 16. BB T 325 ()
(continued)
(i) The Group paid key management personnel () XEBELINFEESE
compensation as follows: BABZHmBMAT ¢
For the six months ended 30 June
BEAA=THLAHEA
2023 2022
—BC=E —EoCF
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEK) (REER)
HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI BETT
Salaries and other short-term FeRAMEHES RN
employee benefits 6,887 11,394
Retirement scheme contributions ~ R{REF 2/ 230 264
7,117 11,658
17. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE 17. @M T E 2 AR ER
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL R ERERR
INSTRUMENTS
Management has assessed that the fair values BEEENACHE e REeEE
of cash and cash equivalents, pledged bank ¥ EEHRITER - TR
deposits, deposits with banks with maturity HEA=ER 2 RITFH
period over three months, creditors, debtors, FERTERFR - FEUERSR - AR
current portion of other receivables, deposits HiEWRIE - e RER
and prepayments, finance lease receivables, RIB - MBS E WA -
other payables and accrued expenses, and HEmEMNRERETER R
interest-bearing borrowings approximate to their STEEEZRBBOZAR

carrying amounts largely due to the short term BEEAEKRE
RZETENEHAEIE -

maturities of these instruments.

ERE T2H
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17. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The Group’s finance management department
is responsible for determining the policies and
procedures for the fair value measurement of
financial instruments. At each reporting date, the
finance management department analyses the
movements in the values of financial instruments
and determines the major inputs applied in
the valuation. The valuation is reviewed and
approved by the chief financial officer. The
valuation process and results are discussed with
the audit committee twice a year for interim and
annual financial reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and
liabilities are included at the amount at which
the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than
in a forced or liquidation sale. The following
methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair values:

The fair values of the non-current portion of other
receivables, deposits and prepayments, finance
lease receivables, other payables and accrued
expenses, and interest-bearing borrowings have
been calculated by discounting the expected
future cash flows using rates currently available
for instruments with similar terms, credit risk
and remaining maturities. The Group’s own non-
performance risk for interest-bearing borrowings
as at 30 June 2023 was assessed to be
insignificant.
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17. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The equity investment designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income in Level
2 represents an investment in a property
investment company, with its investment
properties (being significant part of the total
assets) stated at fair value. The fair value of such
investment is determined based on net asset
value of the investee which approximates to the
fair value.

The fair value of the equity investment
designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income in Level 3 is estimated
with reference to the expected future cash flows
of the investment.

The fair value of the debt instruments at fair
value through other comprehensive income
in Level 2 is estimated with reference to the
discounted expected future cash flows of the
debt instruments.

The fair values of the financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss in Level 2 are based on net
asset value of the investees which approximate
to the fair value.

The fair value of the financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss in Level 3 is based on the
expected future cash flows of the investment.
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17. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value
measurement hierarchy of the Group’s financial

instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:

As at 30 June 2023

17. @RI EZ AR
BEREAR ()

DNABERBEE
TRILAEESRTAZ
NARERERR

N
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BRARE

EHEZEE

R-_ZE-_=F,"A=+H

Fair value measurement using

ERNTREEAAAETE

Quoted
prices  Significant  Significant
inactive  observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
EBT%  EAUER EXTUER
ZHE BAHE BAgE Total
(E-§) (8=4) (E=8) ag
(Unaudited)  (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)
(REEHk) (REEH) (REER) (REER)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT B8T
Equity investments designated %24 Bt AR (2
atfairvalu through other WA 2 RIS -
comprehensive income:
- Unlisted o i - 3,899 29,389 33,288
Debt instruments at fair value K24 Bif AR ZERALZ
through other comprenensive  B7ET & (Gt ATEMES)
income, which are included
in debtors - 6,239,887 - 6,239,887
Financial assets at fair value &A% B ABH 2B HEE
through profit or loss - 322,484 32,901 355,385
- 6,566,270 62,290 6,628,560
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17. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Assets measured at fair value: (continued)

As at 31 December 2022

17. @M T EAZ A RBERARE
ZRIBERRI(E)

DAERBEA(E)
BARLBEFAEZEE - (B)

Fair value measurement using
FRATREEAAL S

Quoted
prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 8)
EEWE  ERUEE  EAFNER
LHE GAHE GAHE Total
(-%) (=R (=R e
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(kEER)  (REBR)  (REER)  (REER)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
BRI BETI AT T
Equity investments designated T RALEFALM2E
atfair value through other A ZRAIEE
comprehensive income:
- Unlisted o i - 3,899 29,389 33,288
Debt instruments at fair value A% B AZBZENALZ
through other comprenensive B8 T & (3 ARUER)
income, which are included
in debtors - 5,212,657 - 5,212,657
Financiel assets at fairvalue ~ FARL B ABRZHIEER
through profit or loss - 360,477 36,498 385,975
- 5,567,033 64,887 5,631,920
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17. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)
Assets measured at fair value: (continued)

The movements in fair value measurements
within Level 3 during the period/year are as

149

17. @RI AZ A RBERARE
ZRIBERRI(E)

DNABERBEE(E)
BARLEFAEZEE - (&)

E=RARBHERE F
RZEHWT :

follows:
At At
30 June 31 December
2023 2022
R-B-=E RZE-ZF
~AB=tR  t+ZA=1+-H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEHK) (g&%)
HK$'000 HK$'000
BB BETT
Equity investments designated BERALEFALLZAK
at fair value through other AZBRERE -
comprehensive income:
At beginning of the period/year WY/ R
and at end of the period/year XK/ EX 29,389 29,389
Financial asset at fair value through RARBHABSZ
profit or loss: HEE:
At beginning of the period/year RE /) 35,498 36,122
Fair value gain/{loss) DhEKE/ (BB) (2,098) 2,897
Exchange realignment EHEE (499) (3,221)
At end of the period/year RER/EXR 32,901 35,498
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17.

18.

19.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

The Group did not have any financial liabilities
measured at fair value as at 30 June 2023 and
31 December 2022.

During the six months ended 30 June
2023, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2
and no transfers into or out of Level 3 for both
financial assets and financial liabilities (six
months ended 30 June 2022: Nil).

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

On 13 July 2023 and 14 July 20283, Everbright
Water issued the 2023 second tranche MTNs
with a principal amount of RMB1.5 billion, an
interest rate of 2.97% per annum, in the national
inter-bank bond market. The proceeds from the
issuance were used for replenishing the working
capital of Everbright Water’s subsidiaries and
repaying the interest-bearing debts of Everbright
Water or its subsidiaries.

On 21 August 2023 and 22 August 2023,
Everbright Water issued the 2023 third tranche
MTNs with a principal amount of RMB1 billion, an
interest rate of 2.82% per annum, in the national
inter-bank bond market. The proceeds from the
issuance were used to replenish the working
capital of the Everbright Water’s subsidiaries.

APPROVAL OF THE UNAUDITED INTERIM
FINANCIAL INFORMATION
This unaudited interim financial information was
approved and authorised for issue by the board
of directors on 29 August 2023.

18.

19.

China Everbright Environment Group Limited
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Report on Review of Interim Financial Information

RN BEERERRE

EY:

To the board of directors of China Everbright
Environment Group Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

INTRODUCTION

We have reviewed the interim financial information
set out on pages 79 to 150, which comprises the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 30
June 2023 of China Everbright Environment Group
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries, and the
related consolidated income statement, consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the six-month period then
ended, and explanatory notes. The Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited require the preparation of
a report on interim financial information to be in
compliance with the relevant provisions thereof
and Hong Kong Accounting Standard 34 “Interim
Financial Reporting” (“HKAS 34”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA”).

The directors of the Company are responsible for
the preparation and presentation of this interim
financial information in accordance with HKAS 34.
Our responsibility is to express a conclusion on this
interim financial information based on our review.
Our report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with our agreed terms of engagement,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.
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PEERIRE (RE)ERAF

Report on Review of Interim Financial Information # 8B 3§ & B F M E

SCOPE OF REVIEW

We conducted our review in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Review Engagements 2410
“Review of Interim Financial Information Performed
by the Independent Auditor of the Entity” issued by
the HKICPA. A review of interim financial information
consists of making inquiries, primarily of persons
responsible for financial and accounting matters, and
applying analytical and other review procedures. A
review is substantially less in scope than an audit
conducted in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing and consequently does not enable us to
obtain assurance that we would become aware of all
significant matters that might be identified in an audit.
Accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion.

CONCLUSION

Based on our review, nothing has come to our
attention that causes us to believe that the interim
financial information is not prepared, in all material
respects, in accordance with HKAS 34.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
27/F, One Taikoo Place

979 King’s Road

Quarry Bay

Hong Kong

29 August 2023
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